
Welcome to this Public Meeting of the Hood River County School District Board of Directors
August 30, 2023 – 6:30 p.m. Nathaniel Coe Administration Center, 1011 Eugene St

6:30 PM I REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING
WELCOME & CALL TO ORDER
Board Chair: Chrissy Reitz, Vice-Chair: Brandi Sheppard;
Board Members: Julia Garcia-Ramirez, Barb Hosford, Jen Kelly, Dave Stuben, and Corinda Hankins Elliott.

Chrissy Reitz

6:31 PM II REVIEW/REVISION OF AGENDA Chrissy Reitz

6:32 PM III SUPERINTENDENT REPORT Bill Newton

6:37 PM IV BOARDMEMBER REPORTS Chrissy Reitz

6:42 PM V STUDENT ENVOY REPORT Student Envoys

6:47 PM VI RECOGNITION & GOOD NEWS Gus Hedberg

6:55 PM VII PUBLIC COMMENT/HEARING OF DELEGATIONS OR VISITORS Chrissy Reitz

7:25 PM VIII CONSOLIDATED REPORTS Chrissy Reitz

A. EL Legislative Report Amy McConnell

7:28 PM IX CONSOLIDATED ACTION Chrissy Reitz

A. Regular Business Meeting Minutes - August 15, 2023
B. Regular Business Meeting Minutes - August 23, 2023
C. Human Resources Report/Personnel Action
D. Superintendent’s Goals

Chrissy Reitz
Chrissy Reitz
Gus Hedberg
Bill Newton

7:30 PM X REPORTS & DISCUSSIONS

A. Strategic Plan Update
B. Spring Core Value Survey Results

Bill Newton
Stephanie Hoppe

8:00 PM XI ACTION ITEMS

A. Approve MOVER Grant Application
B. Approve Resolution 23-24/01 for Hispanic Heritage Month
C. Acceptance of Donations

Kyle Rosselle
Chrissy Reitz
Chrissy Reitz

8:30 PM XII BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS Chrissy Reitz

8:45 PM XIII ADJOURN Chrissy Reitz



DATE: August 30, 2023

TO: Board of Directors

FR: Bill Newton, Superintendent

RE: Consolidated Reports

EXPLANATION: All items listed below are matters considered by the Board of Directors to
be routine and do not require a motion. There will be no separate
discussion of these items unless a member of the board requests a specific
item to be removed from the consolidated reports and placed on the
regular agenda. Any item of the consolidated reports may be pulled by any
board member for a full discussion. The request to move an item from the
consolidated reports to an individual report item should occur during the
“Review/Revision of Agenda” section of the board meeting. Otherwise, all
items contained in the consolidated report will be reviewed by the board
without discussion.

PRESENTER: Bill Newton, Superintendent

SUPPLEMENTARY
MATERIALS:

A. EL Legislative Report

RECOMMENDATION: None

PROPOSED MOTION: None



DATE: August 30, 2023

TO: Board of Directors

FR: Amy McConnell

RE: EL Legislative Report

EXPLANATION: Districts are required to share the EL Legislative Report with their school
boards and post this report to their district web pages by September 1st
annually.

PRESENTERS: Amy McConnell, Director of Curriculum and Instruction

SUPPLEMENTARY
MATERIALS:

Reports Attached

RECOMMENDATION: None

PROPOSED MOTION: None



 

 

English Learners in 
Oregon 
Annual Report 2021-22 
June 2023 

  



English Learners in Oregon 

1 
 

Table of Contents 
Acknowledgements .........................................................................................2 

Executive Summary .........................................................................................3 

Introduction ....................................................................................................6 

Why this report? .............................................................................................................................. 6 

Structure of this report ..................................................................................................................... 7 

Section 1: Demographics of English Learners in Oregon in 2020-21 ....................8 

Current and Former English Learners .................................................................................................. 8 

Section 2: Participation in Targeted Programs ................................................. 17 

Free or Reduced Price Meals ........................................................................................................... 17 

Migrant Education .......................................................................................................................... 20 

Talented and Gifted ........................................................................................................................ 20 

Section 3: Language Development and Academic Outcomes for English Learners
 ..................................................................................................................... 21 

Progress towards English Language Proficiency .................................................................................. 21 

Student Academic Outcomes in English Language Arts and Mathematics .............................................. 24 

Section 4: Attendance, Progress toward Graduation, Graduation, and Beyond . 26 

Regular Attendance ........................................................................................................................ 26 

On Track to Graduate ..................................................................................................................... 27 

Four-Year Graduation ..................................................................................................................... 28 

Current English learners graduating in four years were over 2.7 times more likely to receive a modified 
diploma ........................................................................................................................................ 29 

Oregon State Seal of Biliteracy ......................................................................................................... 29 

Postsecondary Enrollment............................................................................................................... 31 

Section 5: State Revenues and Expenditures for Current English Learners ........ 33 

References .................................................................................................... 35 

 

  



English Learners in Oregon 

2 
 

Acknowledgements 

Appreciation is extended to the following ODE staff members who have assisted districts to 
submit data included in this report, built and maintained ODE data collection systems, aided in 
the analysis and interpretation of data, and provided thoughtful feedback on the report.  
 
Office of Teaching, Learning, and Assessment 
Jennifer Patterson, Assistant Superintendent  
Mary Martinez-Wenzl, Director 
Reza Norouzian, Research Analyst 
Kim Miller, Education Program Specialist 
 
Office of Equity, Diversity, and Inclusion 
Deb Lange, Assistant Superintendent 
Kelly Kalkofen, Education Program Specialist 
Mirela Blekic, Education Program Specialist 
Mariana Praschnik-Enriquez, Education Program Specialist 
Ana Salas, Executive Support Specialist 
Susy Mekarski, Education Program Specialist 
 
Office of Finance and Information Technology 
Mike Mendez, Director 
Lauren Holstein, Business Analyst 
  
Office of Research, Assessment, Data, Accountability, and Reporting  
Dan Farley, Assistant Superintendent  
Jon Wiens, Director 
Andrea Lockard, Director 
Ben Wolcott, Education Program Specialist 
W. Joshua Rew, Psychometrician  
Greg Houser, Research Analyst 
Evan Fuller, Research Analyst 
Stephanie Evers, Research Analyst 
 
 
 

  



English Learners in Oregon 

3 
 

Executive Summary 

ORS 327.016 directs the Oregon Department of Education (ODE) to prepare an annual report on English 
learner program funding and student outcomes. The report’s intention is to describe the population of 
English Learners in Oregon and provide a summary of district and state progress towards meeting their needs 
and objectives. This report is also available on ODE’s legislative reports webpage. Any member of the public 
can contact the Government Relations and External Affairs Director to request a copy of this report.  

Definitions 
ORS 327.016 describes students who receive English language instruction, supports, and services as part of 
an English language development (ELD) program as English learners. While these students are learning 
English in an ELD program, the English learner label only focuses on a singular dimension (i.e., learning 
English) and does not reflect the linguistic and cultural assets of the students (García, 2009). Thus, although 
this report will use the English Learner label in order to comply with ORS 327.016, we recognize these 
students are multilingual learners who bring valuable linguistic and cultural assets. 

The ODE annually reports four groups of English learners: current, former, ever, and never English learners. 
Current English learners are multilingual students who were learning English in an ELD program during the 
2021-22 school year1. Former English learners are multilingual students who demonstrated English 
proficiency and exited an ELD program prior to the 2021-22 school year. Ever English learners are the 
combination of both current and former English learners. Finally, never English learners are monolingual 
English or multilingual students who were not eligible to receive English language instruction, supports, and 
services in an ELD program before or during the 2021-22 school year. 

Nearly 100,000 students in Oregon are current or former English learners.  
As of May 1, 2022, 546,726 students enrolled in Oregon public schools and districts. Among those students, 
10.4 percent were current English learners (56,683 students), 7.8 percent were former English learners 
(42,770 students), and 81.8 percent were never English learners (447,273 students). Both current and former 
English learners (i.e., ever English learners constituting 18.2 percent of students) were an incredibly diverse 
student population in 2021-22. 

The distribution of current English learners varied across grade levels and districts in Oregon during the 2021-
22 school year. Woodburn School district served the highest percentage of current English learners, with 41.5 
percent of students learning English in an ELD program as of May 1, 2022. On the other hand, 67.5 percent of 
Oregon districts either had no current English learners or very few (i.e., less than 5% of all students). 

Other key features of the English learner student population in the 2021-22 school year include the following: 

 The majority of current English learners were in elementary grades (61.1%) while the majority of 
former English learners were in high school grades. 

                                                                     
1 Note that current English learners also include students who are eligible to receive English language instruction, 
supports, and services in an ELD program but do not participate because their parents or guardians waive English 
language instruction, supports, and services.  

https://www.oregon.gov/ode/reports-and-data/LegReports/Pages/default.aspx


English Learners in Oregon 

4 
 

 The number of recently arrived current English learners (i.e., new immigrant students) declined from 
4,373 in 2020-21 to 4,145 students in 2021-22.  

 Spanish was the predominant home language of current English learners (76.6%), but overall there 
were 199 documented unique home languages (an increase of 18 languages from 2020-21) spoken 
by current English learners. Other prevalent languages include Russian, Vietnamese, Chinese, Arabic, 
Chuukese, and Somali; each being the home language of about 2 percent of current English learners. 

 Approximately 77 percent of current English learners were Latino/a/x, and 31.7 percent of Latino/a/x 
students were current English learners. A similar percentage of Native Hawaiian/Pacific Islander 
students (30.3%) were current English learners. 

English learners are overrepresented in special education and underrepresented in 
TAG programs. 
The report also examines the involvement of English learners in targeted federal and state programs: free or 
reduced price meals, special education, migrant education, and the talented and gifted (TAG) program. 

Key findings include the following: 

 A higher percentage of current English learners received special education services and supports as 
compared to never English learners (20.3 vs. 15.4%); however, ever English learners and never 
English learners had similar percentages of students receiving special education services and 
supports (14.5 vs. 15.4%). 

 Almost 9.0 percent of current English learners received services in migrant education programs (i.e., 
5,131 students). Additionally, 51.4 percent of the students in migrant education programs were 
current English Learners 

 While across Oregon 6.5 percent of never English learners participated in TAG programs, this figure 
was 4.9 percent for former English learners and just 0.4 percent for current English learners. 
 

Younger English learners are more likely to be on track to English Language Proficiency 
than their older peers.  
Oregon monitors whether or not current English learners are on-track to attain English language proficiency 
within seven years. More than half of current English learners (53.2%) in elementary school grades were on 
track. In contrast, current English learners in middle or high school grades as well as current English learners 
with disabilities were much less likely to be on track. 

Very few current English learners are meeting state standards in English Language Arts 
and Mathematics. 
A substantially smaller percentage of current English learners in elementary schools (7.0%) versus former 
(38.7%) and never English learners (47.8%) met or exceeded state standards in English Language Arts in 2021-
22. A similar trend is observed at middle and high schools. 

Similarly, a substantially smaller percentage of current English learners in elementary schools (7.1%) versus 
former (36.9%) and never English learners (39.2%) met or exceeded state standards in mathematics in 2021-
22. A similar trend is observed at middle and high schools. 



English Learners in Oregon 

5 
 

Attendance tends to be higher in elementary grades, particularly among former 
English learners 
Former and never English learners have the highest levels of regular attendance (76.1 and 68.7%) in 
elementary school grades. Current English learners have rates of regular attendance substantially lower in 
elementary (60.3%), middle (56.1%), and high school (43.5%) grades. Regular attendance rates decline for 
current, former, and never English learners in middle and high school grades. 

Current English learners are more likely to graduate with a modified diploma 
Former English learners graduated at rates better than never English learners (86.4 vs. 81.7%) in 2021-22; 
however, substantially fewer current English learners graduated in four years (65.3%). Moreover, current 
English learners that graduated in four years were over 2.7 times more likely to receive a modified rather 
than a regular diploma compared to that for never English learners. This ratio increased to 3.4 times for the 
cohorts that graduated in five years. 

Students designated as English learners in high school are less likely to go to college 
than their peers. 
Postsecondary enrollment rates for former English learners were comparable to those of never English 
learners; in both cases, about 55 percent of high school graduates enroll in college within 16 months of 
graduation. On the other hand, current English learners were less likely to enroll in postsecondary education 
institutions. About 38 percent of current English learners went on to college within 16 months of high school 
graduation.  

District revenues and expenditures 
As in reports from previous years, this report summarizes the ratio of expenditures to revenues. In 2021-22, 
that ratio was 0.86, decreased from 0.95 in 2020-21. 

 

  



English Learners in Oregon 

6 
 

Introduction 

In 2021-22, students who received English language instruction, supports, and services in an English language 
development (ELD) program as well as students who exited the ELD program prior to the 2021-22 school year 
made up 18.2 percent of all students in Oregon public schools and districts (as of the first school day in May 
2022). They form a vital part of our student communities and bring a variety of cultural and linguistic assets 
that enrich our schools and districts. This report describes this diverse population of students, examines their 
academic progress and achievement, and summarizes information about key aspects of the education they 
receive in our state. 

Why this report? 
ORS 327.016 directs the Oregon Department of Education (ODE) to prepare an annual report on English 
learner program funding and student outcomes. The report’s intention is to describe the population of 
English Learners in Oregon and provide a summary of district and state progress towards meeting their needs 
and objectives in ELD programs. ORS 327.016 requires ODE to include the following information in the annual 
report: 

 English learner student demographics; 
 Length of participation in ELD programs; 
 Participation in special education and related services; and 
 Other information identified by the ODE. 

In addition, the annual report must include the following financial information: 

 Allocations to each school district from the State School Fund for students enrolled in ELD programs; 
 The extent to which districts expend these allocations for students enrolled in ELD programs; and 
 The categories of expenditures for ELD program funding. 

Each annual report looks back at the prior school year, which for this year is the 2021-22 school year. This 
report will be available on the ODE website, submitted to House and Senate Education Committees, and 
provided to district school boards. State law requires the report to be available to the public at each district’s 
main office and on district websites.  

Definitions 
ORS 327.016 describes students who receive English language instruction, supports, and services as part of 
an ELD program as English learners. While these students are learning English in an ELD program, the English 
learner label only focuses on a singular dimension (i.e., learning English) and does not reflect the linguistic 
and cultural assets of the students (García, 2009). Thus, although this report will use the English Learner label 
in order to comply with ORS 327.016, we recognize these students are multilingual and value their linguistic 
and cultural assets. 

The ODE annually reports four groups of English learners: current, former, ever, and never English learners. 
Current English learners are multilingual students who were learning English in an ELD program during the 



English Learners in Oregon 

7 
 

2021-22 school year2. Former English learners are multilingual students who demonstrated English 
proficiency and exited an ELD program prior to the 2021-22 school year. Ever English learners are the 
combination of both current and former English learners. Finally, never English learners are monolingual or 
multilingual students who were not eligible to receive English language instruction, supports, and services in 
an ELD program before or during the 2021-22 school year. 

Structure of this report 
This report consists of five sections: 

Section 1: Demographics of English Learners 

Section 2: Participation in Targeted Programs 

Section 3: Language Development and Academic Achievement 

Section 4: Attendance, Progress toward Graduation, Graduation, and Beyond 

Section 5: State Revenues and Expenditures for English Learners 

Several aspects of this year’s report differ from the reports  the ODE issued in previous years. For example, 
where appropriate, this report provides comparisons to never English learners (i.e., students not eligible to 
receive services from an ELD program). Furthermore, in addition to describing statewide patterns, in some 
cases the report indicates which districts serve high percentages of certain types of students (e.g., students 
participating in migrant education programs). Finally, this year’s report provides data insights into Student 
Academic Outcomes in English Language Arts and Mathematics that were not available during the period 
impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic.  

  

                                                                     
2 Note that current English learners also include students who are eligible to receive English language instruction, 
supports, and services in an ELD program but do not participate because their parents or guardians waive English 
language instruction, supports, and services.  



English Learners in Oregon 

8 
 

Section 1: Demographics of English Learners in Oregon in 2020-21 

Almost one in five Oregon students has been designated as an English learner. As of the first school day in 
May 2022, 546,726 students enrolled in Oregon public schools and districts. Among those students, 10.4 
percent were current English learners (56,683 students), 7.8 percent were former English learners (42,770 
students), and 81.8 percent were never English learners (447,273 students). Both current and former English 
learners were an incredibly diverse student population in 2021-22 (representing 18.2 percent of all students). 
These students brought a rich linguistic and cultural heritage to their classrooms, schools, and communities. 
This section summarizes the demographics of Oregon’s English learner population, considering grade levels, 
interruptions in formal education among newcomer immigrant students, and racial, ethnic, and linguistic 
diversity.  

Current and Former English Learners  
Current English Learners are multilingual students who are learning English in an ELD program during the 
school year3. They receive English language instruction, supports, and services because they are to help them 
become proficient in English. Identification of English learners is done using a Language use Survey (LUS) as 
well as an English Language Proficiency Assessment (ELPA) screener. In 2021-22, 56,683 of Oregon’s 546,726 
K-12 students, or 10.4 percent, were current English learners4 (see figure 1).  

Figure 1. Percentage of all Oregon students who were current English Learners (2016-17 to 2021-22) 

 

A smaller number of students in 2021-22 (42,770 or 7.8%) were former English learners. Former English 
learners are multilingual students who demonstrated English proficiency and exited an ELD program prior to 
the 2021-22 school year. Research does suggest, however, that former English learners may still need 
support to develop high levels of proficiency in academic English (i.e., the language students need in order to 
be successful in school; see de Jong 2004; Flores, Batalova & Fix, 2012).  Districts are required to monitor the 
academic progress for four years following an English learner exiting as proficient from the English language 
development program per ESSA Title III.  Given its importance, during its monitoring process, ODE reviews 

                                                                     
3 Note that current English learners also include students who are eligible to receive English language instruction, 
supports, and services in an ELD program but do not participate because their parents or guardians waive English 
language instruction, supports, and services.  
4 The data for this portion of the report relies on student enrollments as of the first school day in May 2022. 

10.2

9.1

8.9

9.3

9.6

10.4

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22



English Learners in Oregon 

9 
 

the ways in which the districts monitor the progress of former English learners and provides them with 
feedback to enhance the districts’ ability to support former English learners continued progress.  

Comparisons between current, former, ever, and never English learners are useful to understand the 
experiences and outcomes of English learners over time, and to counter misperceptions about English learner 
achievement. Current English Learners tend to perform at lower levels while still developing English, 
particularly on assessments of content knowledge that are administered in English, which can negatively 
impact their performance. However, once current English learners attain English language proficiency, they 
often perform academically at significantly higher levels than their peers, including monolingual English 
speakers indicating the value of bilingualism (Thompson, Umansky, & Rew, 2022; Hopkins, Thompson, 
Linquanti, Hakuta, & August, 2013).  

Oregon has had a largely stable population of approximately 100,000 English learners (former and current) 
over the past several years. Figure 2 shows the change in the count of current, former, and ever English 
learners in Oregon over the last six school years. In general, it displays a slightly fluctuating population of ever 
English learners in Oregon, starting at 103,605 in 2016-17 and, after increasing and declining for a couple 
years, reaching 99,453 students in 2021-22. 

Figure 2. Number of current, former, and ever English Learners in Oregon (2016-17 to 2021-22) 

 

The majority of current English Learners were in the elementary grades. 
Although there were current English learners at every grade level, approximately two-thirds (61.1%) were in 
kindergarten through fifth grade. Far fewer current English learners were in middle school (grades 6-8; 
19.7%) or in high school (grades 9-12; 19.2%). Figure 3 shows the percent of current and former English 
learners by grade in 2021-22. As the grade level increases from kindergarten to twelfth grade, the percent of 
current English learners decreases as they attain English proficiency and exit their ELD programs 
(subsequently, this results in an increase of former English learners). For example, across the elementary 
grades, the percentage of elementary students who are English learners ranges from 63.2 percent to 100 
percent, while in the secondary grades it ranges from 39.5 percent to 51.5 percent, and in high school it 
ranges from 25.9 percent to 36.2 percent.  

58,275
51,967 51,124 53,488 53,677 56,683

45,330
50,586 51,673 50,480 48,663 42,770

103,605

102,553

102,797

103,968

102,340 99,453

0

20000

40000

60000

80000

100000

120000

2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22

Current English Learners Former English Learners Ever English Learners



English Learners in Oregon 

10 
 

Figure 3. Comparison of the percentage of current and former English learners by grade in 2021-22 

 

English Learner enrollment was not uniform across Oregon districts. 
Oregon has 197 school districts. In 2021-22, 146 districts provided English language instruction, supports, and 
services to current English learners Over 80 districts participate in Title III funds in a consortium as these 
districts have fewer than 65 identified English learners and therefore do not generate the federally required 
$10,000 minimum Title III sub-grant. These districts with small EL populations may experience challengers 
with the students being enrolled across several grade levels, may have different English language proficiency 
levels, or may have limited ELD teachers.  The remaining districts in Oregon currently do not have any 
enrolled English learners.  

Figure 4 shows the distribution of current English learners across Oregon districts in 2021-22. There were 
eight districts with more than 2,000 current English learners. Thus, in 2021-22, districts differed in terms of 
both the number of current English learners and/or the percentage of their student population who received 
English language instruction, supports, and services.  

Statewide, about a quarter of Oregon districts (n = 46) provided English language instruction, supports, and 
services to between 1 and 19 current English learners. This suggests these districts have too few current 
English learners to be independently eligible for specific improvement efforts under state and federal 



English Learners in Oregon 

11 
 

accountability initiatives. However, such districts can always form or join a consortium of districts to become 
eligible for the improvement efforts under state and federal accountability initiatives. 

A sizable proportion of Oregon districts did not have any current English learner enrollments in 2021-22. The 
47 districts not currently serving English learners tended to be small in overall population (median 142 
students). 

Figure 4. Comparison of the number and percentage of current English learners by district in 2021-22 

 

This variation across districts is also evident in table 1, which shows the ten districts with the highest 
numbers of current English learners.  

Table 1. Districts with the highest number of current 
English learners in 2021-22 

District Name 
Number of 

Current English Learners 
Salem-Keizer SD 7,499 
Beaverton SD 5,510 
Portland SD 4,100 
Hillsboro SD 3,693 
Reynolds SD 2,878 
Woodburn SD 2,173 
David Douglas SD 2,140 
North Clackamas SD 2,012 
Gresham-Barlow SD 1,505 
Tigard-Tualatin SD 1,404 

 

In addition, table 2 shows the 10 districts with the highest percentage of current English learners. Note that 
Woodburn and Reynolds appear on both lists. 

 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

0 1,000 2,000 3,000 4,000 5,000 6,000 7,000 8,000

Pe
rc

en
t 

of
 C

ur
re

nt
 E

ng
lis

h 
Le

ar
ne

rs

Current English Learner Count



English Learners in Oregon 

12 
 

 

Table 2. Districts with the highest percentage of current 
English learners in 2021-22 

District Name Percentage of 
Current English Learners 

Woodburn SD 41.5% 
Umatilla SD 30.7% 
Reynolds SD 29.7% 

Nyssa SD 27.5% 
Centennial SD 24.8% 

David Douglas SD 24.6% 
Milton-Freewater 

Unified SD 
24.4% 

Morrow SD 24.0% 
Gervais SD 22.5% 

Hood River County SD 21.8% 
 

The number of recent arrivers declined in 2021-22. 
The term recent arrivers refers to students who were born outside of the U.S. and Puerto Rico, and who have 
been educated in the U.S. for fewer than three cumulative years (i.e., these students are recent immigrants). 
They can be current, former, or never English learners; however, the majority are current English learners.   

In 2021-22, 4,145 current English learners were recent arrivers. This number represents the smallest count of 
recent arrivers over the last six years and continues the reduction (likely due to the COVID pandemic) from 
2019-20 (4,925; see figure 5). 

Figure 5. Number of current English learners who were recent arrivers in Oregon (2016-17 to 2021-22) 

 

Most recent arrivers (60.1%) were in the elementary grades, while 16.5 percent were in grades 6-8 and 22.4 
percent were in high school. Current English learners who are recent arrivers in middle and high school 
contend with significant challenges, since they have to learn the language while also using English-language 
textbooks and lectures to learn the content of their courses in a variety of subject areas (Short & 

6,263
4,685

4,667

4,925

4,373

4,145

0

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

10,000

2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22



English Learners in Oregon 

13 
 

Fitzsimmons, 2007). Recent arrivers in the secondary grades are known as adolescent newcomers, and 
districts sometimes design specialized programs to serve their unique language and cultural needs. 

Statewide, the total number of current English learners who were adolescent newcomers in 2021-22 was 
1,614. Not all districts provided English language instruction, support, and services to adolescent newcomers; 
however, five Oregon districts with the largest population of such students in 2021-22 are shown in Table 3. 

Table 3. Districts with the largest population of adolescent newcomers in 2021-22 

District 
Number of Adolescent Newcomers 

(Recently Arrived Current English Learners in 
Middle or High School) 

Beaverton SD 48J 254 
Salem-Keizer SD 24J 166 
Reynolds SD 7 120 
David Douglas SD 40 100 
Portland SD 1J 83 

 

In 2021-22, districts reported 795 current English learners had experienced 
interruptions in their education. 
Some current and former English learners had their education interrupted or received limited formal 
education before arriving in the U.S. school system. Often, these were immigrant or refugee students who 
had spent time in refugee camps or whose process of immigration to the U.S. prevented them from attending 
school for a time. These students are known as students with limited or interrupted formal education (often 
abbreviated as SIFE or SLIFE). Students are SLIFE if they are immigrant students or English learners who enter 
school in the U.S. after grade two and experience all of the following:  

a. Have at least two fewer years of schooling than their peers of the same age,  
b. Function at least two years below grade level expectations in reading and mathematics, and  
c. Are preliterate in their native language.5  

SLIFE students face unique circumstances. In addition to having missed at least two years of schooling, some 
arrive having experienced significant trauma. Schools need to find ways to serve SLIFE students without 
placing them in classes with younger students, since forming relationships with peers, including never English 
learner peers, is a factor that appears to improve academic outcomes (Browder, 2014).  

The ODE began collecting data on the number of students with limited or interrupted formal education in 
2015-16. For the 2021-22 school year, districts reported 795 current English learners with limited or 
interrupted formal education (about 1.4 percent of all current English learners). As figure 6 illustrates, the 
number of students with limited or interrupted formal education increased from 2016-17 to 2019-20 but 
decreased in 2020-21 and once again increased in 2021-22.  

                                                                     
5 See ESEA Title III English Learner Definitions for more details. 

https://www.oregon.gov/ode/schools-and-districts/grants/ESEA/EL/Documents/ESEA%20Title%20III%20EL%20Definitions%202021%20SY.docx


English Learners in Oregon 

14 
 

Figure 6. Number of current English learners with an interrupted formal education (2016-17 to 2021-22) 

 

Most students with limited or interrupted formal education were in high school (60.8%). Another 27.7 
percent were in the middle school grades (grades 6-8), and only 11.6 percent were in the elementary grades. 

In 2021-22, the distribution of current English learners with limited or interrupted formal education was not 
uniform across Oregon districts. Instead, current English learners with limited or interrupted formal 
education were, for the most part, concentrated in a few districts. Eight districts in Oregon, identified in table 
4, provided English language instruction, supports, and services to at least 20 current English learners with 
limited or interrupted formal education in 2021-22. These eight districts alone enrolled 81 percent of all SLIFE 
students in Oregon. Note that three of the eight districts serving many adolescent newcomers (see table 3) 
also enroll a significant numbers of current English learners with interrupted formal education (i.e., Portland, 
Beaverton, and Reynolds). 

Table 4. Districts serving at least 20 current English learners with interrupted formal education in 2021-22 

District Number of Current English Learners with  
Limited or Interrupted Formal Education 

Hillsboro SD 1J 235 
Hermiston SD 8 106 
Portland SD 1J 81 
Beaverton SD 48J 70 
Reynolds SD 7 56 
Woodburn SD 103 45 
Morrow SD 1 30 
South Lane SD 45J3 21 

 

Current English learners across the state spoke 199 unique home languages. 
Statewide, current English learners spoke about 199 different languages at home. By far the most prevalent 
home language among Oregon current English learners was Spanish, spoken at home by 76.3 percent of all 
current English learners. The four next most common languages were Russian, Vietnamese, Chinese, and 
Arabic. Taken together, these top five languages represent 84.7 percent of home languages among current 
English learners (see table 5). In recent years, the number of current English learners speaking Somali, 
Mesoamerican languages, and other languages has been increasing.  

660

666

885

866

690

795

0

200

400

600

800

1,000

2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22



English Learners in Oregon 

15 
 

In 2020, ODE expanded the language of origin reporting options to include an additional 384 languages; many 
of which were Mesoamerican languages such as Mam, Q’anjobal, and K’iche. This was intended to reduce the 
prevalence of districts reporting an unknown home language. However, in 2021-22, districts reported an 
unidentified home language for 1,348 students, suggesting a need for more training and support in this area.  

Table 5. Most prevalent home languages among current English learners in 2021-22 

Language  Number of Current English 
Learners with this Language 

Percentage of Current English 
Learners with this Language 

Spanish 43,419 76.6% 
Russian 1,345 2.37% 
Vietnamese 1,251 2.21% 
Chinese 1,200 2.12% 
Arabic 830 1.46% 
Chuukese  688 1.21% 
Somali  600 1.06% 
English6 561 0.99% 
Ukrainian 417 0.74% 
Japanese 367 0.65% 
Marshallese 352 0.62% 
Korean 269 0.47% 

 

Home languages other than Spanish tend to concentrate in a few districts. Figure 6 provides a map 
illustrating the number of different home languages in different Oregon districts. A few districts, mostly in the 
Portland metropolitan area and Salem, provide English language instruction, supports, and services to 
students with over 60 unique home languages.  

                                                                     
6 All 561 current English Learners with English as the home language were American Indian/Alaska Native students. 



English Learners in Oregon 

16 
 

Figure 7. Geographic distribution current English learner home languages across Oregon districts during 
2021-22 

 

The vast majority of current English learners were Latina/o/x. 
Of the 56,683 current English learners in Oregon during the 2021-22 school year, 43,629 (77%) were 
Latina/o/x. About 7.3 percent were White and 8.6 were Asian, while smaller percentages were Black/African 
American, Native Hawaiian/Pacific Islander, American Indian/Alaska Native, and Multi-Racial (see figure 8).  

Figure 8. Percentage of current English learners by race/ethnicity in 2021-22 

 

It is important to note that most Latina/o/x students in Oregon were not current English learners. In fact, 
according to figure 9, only 31.7 percent of Latina/o/x students were current English learners in 2021-22. 
Moreover, 30.3 percent of Native Hawaiian/Pacific Islander students were current English learners.  

1.0

0.8

2.4

2.9

7.3

8.7

77.0

0.0 10.0 20.0 30.0 40.0 50.0 60.0 70.0 80.0

Multi-Racial

American Indian/Alaska Native

Native Hawaiian/Pacific Islander

Black/African American

White

Asian

Latina/o/x



English Learners in Oregon 

17 
 

Figure 9. Percentage of each racial/ethnic group who were current English learners in 2021-22 

 

Section 2: Participation in Targeted Programs 

Schools and districts deliver a range of programs that aim to address the needs of particular groups of 
students. These include free or reduced price meals, special education, migrant education, and TAG 
programs. Most of these programs receive some federal funding; however, TAG programs receive only state 
funding. This section of the report describes the participation of English learners in each of these programs 
during the 2021-22 school year. 

Free or Reduced Price Meals 
Students who come from low-income families (those earning below 185 percent of the federal poverty line) 
are eligible for free or reduced price meals. The percentage of students receiving free or reduced price meals 
is an estimate of the level of poverty or economic disadvantage in a school. It is an imprecise measure, since 
some eligible students and families never apply to the program; however, it provides the best data currently 
available to compare poverty and economic disadvantage levels across schools and districts.  

However, as mentioned in the statewide annual report card (2022), “due to COVID-19, USDA issued a suite of 
waivers for the School Nutrition Program for the 2020-21 and 2021-22 school years that allowed meals to be 
served at no cost to all children and eliminated the need for schools to collect Free and Reduced Price Lunch 
eligibility data. Therefore, there is no accurate eligibility data available for 2021-22” (p. 54).  

As a reminder, however, the latest data prior to the COVID-19 pandemic (2019-20) are provided in figure 10. 
According to the figure, current and former English learners were much more likely than never English 
learners to be eligible for free or reduced price meals. This suggested that households for current and former 
English learners were more likely to experience poverty and economic disadvantage. Overall, 86.6 percent of 
current English learners came from economically disadvantaged households. 

1.3

1.4

7.6

13.0

22.1

30.3

31.7

0 5 10 15 20 25 30 35

White

Multi-Racial

American Indian/Alaska Native

Black/African American

Asian

Native Hawaiian/Pacific Islander

Latina/o/x



English Learners in Oregon 

18 
 

Figure 10. Percentage of current, former, and never English learners receiving free or reduced price meals 
in 2019-20 

Special Education 

Students who are current English learners and receive special education services and supports are known as 
dual-identified students, since they receive instruction, supports, and services from two programs (i.e., 
English language and special education).  

There is concern in the field about the difficulty of accurately identifying current English learners who need 
special education services and supports. Schools may incorrectly identify current English learners as having a 
learning disability when, in fact, it is their developing English proficiency that adversely influences their 
educational progress. On the other hand, some schools may overlook genuine disabilities, assuming that 
current English learners just need more time to learn English. Both identification challenges are prevalent not 
only in Oregon but across the United States (Artiles & Ortiz, 2002; Hamayan, Marler, Sanchez Lopez & 
Damico, 2007; Umansky, Thompson, & Díaz, 2017). 

Ever English learners and never English learners received special education services 
and supports at about the same rate.  
As figure 11 illustrates, a far higher rate of current English learners (21.1%) received special education 
services and supports as compared to former (7.4%) and never English learners (15.2%). However, the 
percentage of ever English learners (the combination of current and former English learners) receiving 
services and supports is very similar to that for never English learners.  

46.3

77.8

86.6

0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70 80 90 100

Never English Learners

Former English Learners

Current English Learners



English Learners in Oregon 

19 
 

Figure 11. Percentage of current, former, never, and ever English learners receiving special education 
services and supports in 2021-22 

 

The percentage of current English learners receiving special education remained 
consistent in 2021-22. 
In 2021-22, 11,508 current English learners (20.3%) were receiving special education supports and services. 
The number of current English learners receiving special education services and supports in 2021-22 
represents a slight decrease from the year before, when 21.1 percent of current English learners received 
special education services and supports (see figure 12). 

Figure 12. Percentage of current English learners receiving special education services and supports (2016-
17 to 2021-22) 

 

Most English learners with a disability in 2021-22 had a specific learning disability (3,590 students) or a 
speech or communication disorder (2,992 students) as their primary disability.7 Other primary disabilities, in 
order of frequency in 2021-22, included other health impairments, autism, intellectual disability, emotional 
behavior disability, deaf or hard of hearing, orthopedic impairment, visual impairments including blindness, 
traumatic brain injury, and deaf-blindness. 

                                                                     
7 A specific learning disability refers to a disorder in one or more of the basic psychological processes involved in 
understanding or using language that may manifest itself in difficulties in listening, thinking, speaking, reading,  
writing, spelling, or doing math calculations. A speech or language impairment refers to a communication disorder 
such as stuttering, impaired articulation, or a language or voice impairment that adversely affects a students’ 
learning or educational performance. 

7.4

14.6

15.2

21.1

0.0 5.0 10.0 15.0 20.0 25.0

Former English Learners

Ever English Learners

Never English Learners

Current English Learners

18.4 20.6

21.3

21.0

21.1

20.3

15.0

17.0

19.0

21.0

23.0

25.0

2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22



English Learners in Oregon 

20 
 

Migrant Education 
Some English learners also participate in migrant education programs. Students are eligible for migrant 
education programs if students aged 3-21 can qualify for the Title 1-C program, or/and if they or their parents 
are engaging in qualifying agricultural or fishing work, and they have moved within the past 36 months to 
obtain or seek this type of work. Many migrant children experienced poverty, and when they move, they 
confront the challenges of having to adjust to different teachers with different instructional approaches  and 
materials, as well as building new social connections. The intent of migrant education programs is to ensure 
that migrant children receive the support that addresses their unique situations and are able to receive 
supports necessary to succeed academically.  

9 percent of current English learners were eligible for Title 1-C Migrant Education 
Programs services in 2021-22. 
Oregon has one of the largest migratory student populations nationally. Across the state in the 2021-22, 
5,114 current English learners participated in migrant education programs. That number translates to 9.0 
percent of all current English learners. It also means that more than half (51.4 percent) of the 9,947 students 
in migrant education programs were current English Learners in 2021-22. Moreover, 37.4 percent of students 
in migrant education programs in 2021-22 were former English learners. This also implies that 88.8 percent of 
the 9,947 students who received services from migrant education programs were ever English learners.8 

Approximately 97 districts received federal funds in the 2021-22 school year to support their migrant 
education programs. Districts that did not receive federal funding in 2021-22 did not have eligible students 
enrolled in their schools and programs. Ten districts with the largest population of English learners 
participating in their migrant education program in 2021-22 (see table 6). 

Table 6. Districts with the largest number of English learners participating in migrant education programs 
in 2021-22 

District Number of Current ELs in 
Migrant Education District Number of Current ELs in 

Migrant Education 
Salem-Keizer SD 24J 513 Klamath County SD 164 
Woodburn SD 103 426 Hood River County SD 149 
Hillsboro SD 1J 386 Phoenix-Talent SD 4 145 
Medford SD 549C 360 Eagle Point SD 9 142 
Forest Grove SD 15 280 Beaverton SD 48J 138 

 

Talented and Gifted 
The state requires that all school districts establish policies and procedures to identify students to participate 
in TAG programs. These students may have high general intelligence and/or demonstrate unusual academic 
ability in one or more particular areas. State law requires districts to develop a plan to provide programs and 
services beyond regular school programs in order to ensure that eligible students can develop and realize 
their potential (OAR 581-022-2500).  

                                                                     
8 The data for this portion of the report relies on student enrollments as of the first school day in May 2022. 



English Learners in Oregon 

21 
 

Correctly identifying students for TAG programs and providing specialized services is important because 
these students may have both unique talents and face unique challenges. For example, some TAG students 
struggle with perfectionism and the ability to cope with failure. Others engage only selectively at school and 
have high levels of absenteeism. Recent findings from the ODE suggest that approximately 10 percent of TAG 
students drop out of high school (Allen, 2016).  

Current English Learners were rarely identified for TAG Programs. 
According to figure 13, 6.5 percent of never English learners (29,092 students) were eligible for TAG programs 
in 2021-22. While 4.9 percent of former English learners were eligible (2,107 students) and 5.3 percent of 
ever English learners were eligible (2,336 students), less than 1 percent (0.4%%) of current English learners 
were eligible for TAG programs in 2021-22 (229 students). Never English learners were over 16.2 times more 
likely to be eligible for TAG programs than current English learners in 2021-22.  

Figure 13. Percentage of current, former, ever, and never English learners who participated in a TAG 
program in 2021-22 

 

Section 3: Language Development and Academic Outcomes for English Learners  

Students who are current English learners have to develop proficiency in English. In addition and at the same 
time, they must learn all the same academic content as other students in Oregon. This section of the report 
provides data about English language proficiency and academic outcomes of current English learners (with 
comparisons to former, ever, and never English learners). 

Progress towards English Language Proficiency 
Title I-A of the Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA) requires current English learners to take an English 
language proficiency assessment (ELPA) annually. The ELPA measures a student’s proficiency in the domains 
of listening, reading, speaking, and writing. Students who demonstrate proficiency on all four ELPA domains 
are ready to exit the ELD program. Since 2017-18, the ODE monitors whether current English learners are on 
track to attain English language proficiency using a trajectory expectation model. Current English learners are 
on track if their current ELPA domain performance meets or exceeds trajectory expectations given (1) initial 
ELPA domain performance, (2) years identified as a current English learner, and (3) disability and/or an 
interrupted formal education status. These expectations are in line with trajectory expectations indicated by 
research on English learners (see Hakuta, Goto Butler, & Witt, 2000; Robinson Cimpian, Thompson, & 

0.4

2.3

4.9

6.5

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

Current English Learners

Ever English Learners

Former English Learners

Never English Learners



English Learners in Oregon 

22 
 

Umansky, 2016; Umansky & Reardon, 2014), as well as SIFE, and dual-identified English learners (see Burke, 
Morita-Mullaney, & Singh, 2016; Conger, 2009; Kieffer & Parker, 2016; Thompson, 2015; Umansky & 
Reardon, 2014). Interested readers are also referred to the Oregon’s ESSA Consolidated State Plan (2017) for 
Oregon’s trajectory expectations (pp. 43-44). 

According to figure 14, as the grade level increases, the percentage of current English learners on track to 
attain English language proficiency decreases from 53.2 percent in elementary school grades to 25.4 percent 
in high school grades. Furthermore, the same pattern is evident for current English learners with disabilities 
where the percentage decreases from 35.4 percent in elementary school grades to 8.9 percent in high school 
grades. To some extent, the decrease in the percentage of current English learners on track to attain English 
language proficiency from elementary to high school grades is not a surprise due to the annual exiting of 
current English learners. This has a considerable impact on the composition of current English learners across 
grade levels. Thus, inferences and comparisons across grade levels and between groups of current English 
learners (e.g., those with and without disabilities) must use caution.       

Figure 14. Percentage of all current English learners and current English learners with disabilities on track 
to attain English language proficiency by elementary (K-5), middle (6-8), and high school grades (9-12) in 
2021-22 

 

Long-term current English learners made up 21.2 percent of all current English 
learners. 
Parents and communities have concerns about the ability of Oregon’s schools and districts to ensure current 
English learners attain English language proficiency and exit an ELD program within an appropriate amount of 
time. Current English learners who are unable to meet proficiency expectations after a period of time are 
known as long-term current English Learners. The ODE defines a long-term current English learner as a 
student who receives English language instruction, supports, and services in an ELD program for more than 
seven years. 

In 2021-22, most current English learners (78.8%) were not long-term current English learners; however, this 
means that 21.2 percent of current English learners received English language instruction, supports, and 
services for more than seven years. This is a concern because slower development of English language 
proficiency is highly predictive of other academic challenges (Menken & Kleyn, 2009; Danahy Ebert & Reilly, 
2022). An important point to consider is the ability of Oregon’s schools and districts to meet the needs of 

53.2

29.8 25.4
35.4

19.2
8.9

0

20

40

60

80

100

K-5 6-8 9-12

All Current English Learners Current English Learners with Disabilities



English Learners in Oregon 

23 
 

current English learners. This is particularly salient given that 39.8 percent of current English learners with 
disabilities received English language instruction, supports, and services for more than seven years in 2021-
22.  

Approximately 24 percent of current English learners receiving special education 
services and supports developed English language proficiency in six years. 
It is also useful to look at the development of English language proficiency from another angle, namely, what 
proportion of current English learners develop proficiency within a particular amount of time? 

This measure uses data for all current English learners who received English language instruction, supports, 
and services in an ELD program in 2021-22 regardless of the length, start, or end of enrollment. While most of 
the data in this report rely on the first school day in May 2022 as a snapshot, this measure includes all current 
English learners (even those not enrolled on the first school day in May 2022).    

Figure 15 addresses this question for current English learners with and without disabilities. For current 
English learners without disabilities who began receiving English language instruction, supports, and services 
on or after July 1, 2015, the probability of reclassification (i.e., attaining English language proficiency and 
exiting an ELD program) after six years is 0.65 (or, after multiplying by 100, 65%). That is, 65 percent of the 
current English learners without disabilities attained English language proficiency and exited an ELD program 
within six years. On the other hand, only 24 percent of current English learners with disabilities attained 
English language proficiency and exited an ELD program with six years. Succinctly put, ELs without a disability 
are, on average, over twice as much likely to exit the EL program within six years than their EL peers with a 
disability. 

Figure 15. Probability of reclassification for current English learners with and without disabilities within six 
years (July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2022) 

 



English Learners in Oregon 

24 
 

Student Academic Outcomes in English Language Arts and Mathematics 
Each year, all Oregon students in grades 3-8 and 11 take state assessments in English language arts and 
mathematics. These assessments, offered in English, may be especially challenging for ELs who are still 
developing proficiency. For both subjects, a performance level of three or higher meets the state standards. 

Former ELs performed similarly or slightly below never ELs in English language arts, 
while few current ELs met or exceeded state standards. 
At the elementary level (grade 3-5), 7.0 percent of current ELs met or exceeded state standards in English 
language arts. In contrast, 50.5 percent of former ELs in elementary hit this benchmark. This was close to the 
percentage of never ELs meeting or exceeding standards, 47.8 percent. In fact in many districts (74), a higher 
percentage of former ELs, compared to never ELs, met benchmark in elementary English language arts. 

At the middle school level (grades 6-8), 4.0 percent of current ELs met or exceeded state standards in English 
language arts. Additionally, 38.7 percent of former ELs and 48.5 percent of never ELs met or exceeded 
standards. In 39 districts, a higher percentage of former ELs, compared to never ELs, met benchmark. 

Among high school students (grade 11), 6.1 percent of current ELs, 41.3 percent for former ELs, and 51.2 
percent of never ELs met or exceeded state standards. At the high school level, there were 39 districts9 in 
which a higher percentage of former ELs than never ELs met the benchmark in English language arts.   

                                                                     
9 These districts include: Baker SD, Gladstone SD, Astoria SD, Coquille SD, Bandon SD, Elkton SD, City SD, Phoenix-
Talent SD, Ashland SD, Central Point SD, Eagle Point SD, Culver SD, Baker SD, Gladstone SD, Astoria SD, Coquille SD, 
Bandon SD, Elkton SD, Prairie City SD, Phoenix-Talent SD, Ashland SD, Central Point SD,  Eagle Point SD, Culver SD, 
Three Rivers/Josephine County SD, Klamath, Falls City Schools, Klamath County SD,  Fern Ridge SD, Creswell SD, 
Bethel SD, Siuslaw SD, Harrisburg SD, Scio SD, Santiam Canyon SD, Adrian SD, Vale SD, Gervais SD, Jefferson SD, 
Parkrose SD, Reynolds SD, Centennial SD, David Douglas SD, Dallas SD Milton-Freewater Unified SD, Stanfield SD, 
Powder SD, Gaston SD, Mitchell SD, Sheridan SD, Knappa SD, Ione SD.    



English Learners in Oregon 

25 
 

Figure 16. Percentage of current, former and never ELs meeting or exceeding state standards in English 
Language Arts in elementary, middle and high school, 2021-2210  

 

In math, former ELs performed below never ELs, especially in middle and high school, 
while less than 10 percent of current EL met or exceeded state standards.  
At the elementary level, 7.1 percent of current ELs met or exceeded standards in math (Figure 17). In 
addition, 36.9 percent of former ELs met or exceeded standards in math. The percentage of never ELs 
meeting or exceeding standards was somewhat higher, 39.2 percent.  

Among middle school students, 2.6 percent of current ELs met or exceeded standards in math, compared to 
20.9.2 percent of former ELs and 31.3 percent of never ELs. 

Among students in grade 11, 1.8 percent of current ELs, 13.8 percent of former ELs, and 23.2 percent of 
never ELs met or exceeded standards in math. At all levels and among all groups, fewer students met or 
exceeded standards in math than in English language arts. 

                                                                     
10 In this chart, the group “current EL” includes only students who were classified as current ELs at the time of 
testing. In some other state accountability reports, the performance of current and recently reclassified ELs are 
reported together. 

7.0
4.0 6.1

50.5

38.7
41.3

47.8 48.5
51.2

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

Grades 3-5 Grades 6-8 Grade 11

Current English Learners Former English Learners Never English Learners



English Learners in Oregon 

26 
 

Figure 17. Percentage of current, former and never ELs meeting or exceeding state standards in 
mathematics in elementary, middle and high school, 2021-2211  

 

Section 4: Attendance, Progress toward Graduation, Graduation, and Beyond 

This section of the report examines several important outcomes for English learners. These are attendance, 
ninth grade progress towards graduation, four-year graduation, earning a Seal of Biliteracy, and 
postsecondary enrollment. 

Regular Attendance 
In recent years, researchers and educators alike have devoted increasing attention to ensuring students 
attend school on a regular basis. Research has shown that even moderate levels of absenteeism can have a 
profound impact on students’ grades, performance on standardized assessments, graduation rates, and 
success in college (Allensworth & Evans, 2016; Ginsburg, Jordan, & Chang, 2014). In Oregon, students exhibit 
“regular attendance” at school if they attend more than 90 percent of school days during the school year.   

Among elementary grades in 2021-22, former and never English learners have the highest levels of regular 
attendance (see figure 18). Current English learners, on the other hand, have lower rates of regular 
attendance in elementary, middle, and high school grades. In fact, regular attendance rates decline 
considerably for current, former, and never English learners in middle and high school grades  (with current 
and former English learners declining by approximately 17 and 23 percentage points between elementary 
and high school grades).  

                                                                     
11 Also in this chart, the group “current EL” includes only students who were classified as current ELs at the time of 
testing.  

7.1
2.6 1.8

36.9

20.9

13.8

39.2

31.3

23.2

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

Grades 3-5 Grades 6-8 Grade 11

Current English Learners Former English Learners Never English Learners



English Learners in Oregon 

27 
 

Figure 18. Percentage of current, former, and never English learners regularly attending school by 
elementary (K-5), middle (6-8), and high school grades (9-12) in 2021-22 

 

On Track to Graduate 
Around the country, states and districts track whether students in the 9th grade are on track to graduate 
within four years. They do this because ninth grade is a critical year for determining whether students will 
ultimately graduate from high school; identifying students who are not on track allows schools to provide 
supports and interventions to help keep students in school and progressing towards graduation. In Oregon, 
students in the 9th grade are on track to graduate if they earn at least six credits or 25 percent of the credits 
their district requires for graduation. However, one should note that ODE’s data is limited to the number of 
credits earned and not the specific courses credits earned. From 2016-17 to 2021-22, a higher percentage of 
former and never English learners were on-track to graduate compared to current English learners.12 

According to figure 19, former and never English learners in 9th grade are on track to graduate at substantially 
higher percentages than current English learners from 2017-18 to 2021-22. Former and never English 
learners have very similar percentages. Their gap shrinks from 1.1 percentage points in 2017-18 to 0.8 
percentage points in 2018-19. Indeed, the gap between former and never English learners completely closes 
in 2021-22. From 2017-18 to 2018-19, current, former, and never English learners exhibited some 
improvement in the percentage of students on-track to graduate. Current English learners’ rates improves by 
1.2 percentage points. Despite a considerable decline in 2020-21 due to the impact of the COVID-19 
pandemic, all three groups of students experience a sizeable improvement in 2021-22 with the current and 
former English learners increasing by 14.2 and 13.4 percentage points since 2020-21. It must be noted also 
that as part of Senate Bill 744 passed in 2021, these students were not required to demonstrate proficiency 
for three of the nine essential skills as one of their non-credit graduation requirements. 

                                                                     
12 Data representing the percentage of current, former, and never English learners who were on track to graduate 
in ninth grade were not available during the 2019-20 school year. The reason for the unavailability is due to the 
State of Oregon’s response to the COVID-19 pandemic (e.g., the cancellation of data collections that either capture 
the specific data or support the calculation of this measure at the district and state levels).  

60.3 56.1
43.5

76.1
68.8

52.8
68.7 67.3

58.5

0

20

40

60

80

100

K-5 6-8 9-12

Current English Learners Former English Learners Never English Learners



English Learners in Oregon 

28 
 

Figure 19. Percentage of 9th grade current, former, and never English learners on track to graduate within 
four years (2017-18 to 2021-22) 

 

Four-Year Graduation 
The ODE uses a cohort adjusted graduation rate to examine and monitor the percentage of students 
graduating within a specific number of years. The data for this section relies on the four-year cohort adjusted 
graduation rate for current, former, and never English learners.  For the purposes of reporting graduation 
data to the public, current English learners are multilingual students who received English language 
instruction, supports, and services in an ELD program at any time during high school. Former English learners 
are multilingual students who attained English language proficiency and exited an ELD program prior to 
entering high school. Note that current English learners included students who were eligible to receive 
English language instruction, supports, and services in an ELD program but did not participate because their 
parents or guardians waived services. Lastly, never English learners are monolingual English or multilingual 
students who were not eligible to receive English language instruction, supports, and services in an ELD 
program at any time in grades kindergarten through twelve. 

Former English learners graduated at rates similar to or better than never English learners; however, 
substantially fewer current English learners graduated in four years. 

According to figure 20, former and never English learners graduate in four years at relatively similar rates; 
however, although similar, the rate for former English learners was higher from 2015-16 to 2021-22. Indeed, 
consistently since years 2015-16, the four-year graduation rate for former English learners was higher than 
the rate for never English learners.  

Current English learners, on the other hand, graduated in four years at lower rates than former and never 
English learners; however, it is important to note that the four-year graduation rate for current English 
learners has grown considerably from 2015-16 to 2021-22 (an increase of 12.4 percentage points). 

69.6
70.8

54.3
68.5

84.2 85.4
70.4

83.8

85.3
86.2

75.7
83.8

0

20

40

60

80

100

2017-18 2018-19 2020-21 2021-22

Current English Learners Former English Learners Never English Learners



English Learners in Oregon 

29 
 

Figure 20. Percentage of current, former, and never English learners graduating within four years (2015-16 
to 2021-22). 

 

Current English learners graduating in four years were over 2.7 times more likely 
to receive a modified diploma 
Modified diplomas are designed for students who meet certain criteria listed in OAR 581-022-2010. Modified 
diplomas require fewer credits to graduate compared to a regular high school diploma. Among the current 
English learners who graduated in four years in 2021-22 (i.e., 1,841 students), 202 students (11%) received a 
modified diploma (see table 7). By contrast, among the former English learners that graduated in 4 years in 
2021-22 (i.e., 5,435 students), 117 students (2.2%) received a modified diploma. Finally, among the never 
English learners who graduated in four years in 2021-22 (i.e., 30,535 students), 1,216 students (4%) received 
a modified diploma. 

In addition, among the students that graduated in four years in 2021-22, current English learners were more 
than 2.7 times (11 percent ÷ 4%) more likely to receive a modified diploma compared to that for never 
English learners. Indeed, this ratio increases to 3.4 times (15.4 percent ÷ 4.5%) for cohorts that graduated in 
five years.  

Table 7. Percentage of students receiving regular vs. modified diplomas 

Student (Diploma Type) Four-Year Cohort Five-Year Cohort 

Current English Learners (Modified) 11% 15.4% 
Former English Learners (Modified) 2.2% 2.7% 
Never English Learners (Modified) 4.0% 4.5% 
Current English Learners (Regular) 89.0% 84.6% 
Former English Learners (Regular) 97.8% 97.3% 
Never English Learners (Regular) 96.0% 95.5% 

 

Oregon State Seal of Biliteracy 
The Seal of Biliteracy offers recognition of the many cognitive, academic, and economic benefits of 
bilingualism. Students can earn a Seal of Biliteracy on their diplomas if they meet the following requirements: 

 Meet all graduation requirements, and 

52.9 54.9 55.8
60.2 64.6 64.4 65.3

77.9 80.0 82.5 84.3 86.1 84.2 86.4

75.5 77.2 79.2 80.3 83.1 81.1 81.7

0

20

40

60

80

100

2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22

Current English Learners Former English Learners Never English Learners



English Learners in Oregon 

30 
 

 score at the intermediate high level in listening, speaking, reading, and writing in a partner language. 

The data for this section rely on students who graduated in 2021-22 (and were part of the four-year cohort 
adjusted graduation rate) as the denominator in calculations. Moreover, this section will examine the count 
and percentage of current, former, and never English learners13 who earned the Seal of Biliteracy in 2021-22. 

The majority of students who earned the Seal of Biliteracy in 2021-22 were ever 
English learners and never English learners who are native speakers of languages in 
addition to English. 
Of the 37,814 students who graduated in 2021-22, 2,078 students (about 5.5%) also earned the Seal of 
Biliteracy. Among those 2,078 students, 44.8 percent were never English learners, 44.6 percent were former 
English learners, and 10.6 percent were current English learners (see figure 21). In other words, 55.2 percent 
of those who earned the Seal of Biliteracy were ever English learners. Note that the majority of students who 
earn the Seal of Biliteracy are (1) ever English learners and (2) never English learners who are native speakers 
of languages in addition to English. 

Figure 21. Percentage of current, former, and never English learners earning the Seal of Biliteracy in 2021-
22 (among all students who earned the Seal of Biliteracy) 

 

According to figure 22, among former English learners who graduated in 2021-22, 17 percent earned the Seal 
of Biliteracy. Moreover, 12 percent of current English learner graduates earned the Seal of Biliteracy in 2021-
22. This means that, among ever English learners who graduated in 2021-22, 29 percent also earned the Seal 
of Biliteracy.  

                                                                     
13 For the purposes of reporting Seal of Biliteracy data in this report, current English learners are multilingual 
students who received English language instruction, supports, and services in an ELD program at any time during 
high school. Note that current English learners included students who were eligible to receive English language 
instruction, supports, and services in an ELD program but did not participate because their parents or guardians 
waived services. Former English learners are multilingual students who attained English language proficiency and 
exited an ELD program prior to entering high school. Lastly, never English learners are monolingual English or 
multilingual students who were not eligible to receive English language instruction, supports, and services in an 
ELD program at any time in grades kindergarten through twelve.  

10.6

44.6

44.8

0.0 5.0 10.0 15.0 20.0 25.0 30.0 35.0 40.0 45.0 50.0

Current English Learners

Former English Learners

Never English Learners



English Learners in Oregon 

31 
 

Figure 22. Percentage of current, former, and never English learners earning the Seal of Biliteracy in 2021-
22 (among current, former, and never English learner graduates) 

 

Students earned the Seal of Biliteracy for their knowledge of 20 different partner 
languages; however, Spanish was the most common partner language. 
More than three-quarters of students earning the Seal of Biliteracy (78.2%) had Spanish as their partner 
language. The next three partner languages, in order of the number of students, were French, Chinese, and 
Korean, all with 50 or more students earning the Seal of Biliteracy in that language. Spanish, Chinese, Korean, 
and Russian were the partner languages with the most current and former English learners earning the Seal 
of Biliteracy. On the other hand, the top three partner languages among never English learners who earned 
the Seal of Biliteracy in 2021-22 were Spanish, French, Japanese, and Chinese. 

Nine districts had 50 or more students earning the Seal of Biliteracy. 
In 2021-22, nine districts had 50 or more students earning the Seal of Biliteracy (see table 7). Moreover, 
among Woodburn’s students who graduated in 2021-22, 53.6 percent earned the Seal of Biliteracy. Three 
other districts in 2021-22 had 10 percent or more of their high school graduates earning the Seal of Biliteracy.  

Table 7. Districts with 50 or more students earning the Seal of Biliteracy in 2021-2214 

District Number 
of Students 

District Number 
of Students 

Portland SD 1J 344 Corvallis SD 509J 91 
Beaverton SD 48J 330 North Clackamas SD 12 81 
Salem-Keizer SD 24J 193 Hillsboro SD 1J 79 
Woodburn SD 103 156 West Linn-Wilsonville SD 3J 68 
Eugene SD 4J 93   

 
Postsecondary Enrollment 
The ODE annually examines and publicly reports the percentage of high school graduates who enroll in 
postsecondary education institutions in Oregon and across the U.S. (e.g., public and private, 2-year and 4-

                                                                     
14 Note that the counts in this table reflect students who graduated in 2021-22 (and were part of the four-year 
cohort adjusted graduation rate) and earned the Seal of Biliteracy. There were students who earned the Seal of 
Biliteracy in 2021-22 but were part of the five-year cohort or another cohort.  

3.0

12.0

17.0

0.0 2.0 4.0 6.0 8.0 10.0 12.0 14.0 16.0 18.0

Never English Learners

Current English Learners

Former English Learners



English Learners in Oregon 

32 
 

year, etc.). A postsecondary education affords students a wide range of advantages, including greater 
employment opportunities, financial security, opportunities to contribute in their community, and greater life 
satisfaction. The data for this measure uses students who graduated in 2018-19 (and were part of the four-
year cohort adjusted graduation rate) as the denominator in calculations.15 Moreover, this portion of the 
report will examine the count and percentage of current, former, and never English learners16 who enrolled 
in a postsecondary education institution within 16 months after graduation. 

Never English learners were more likely to enroll in postsecondary education 
institutions than current English learners; however, former English learners had 
comparable postsecondary enrollment rates as never English learners.  
Figure 23 shows the postsecondary enrollment rates by graduation year for three groups of Oregon students. 
The postsecondary enrollment rates for never English learners, represented by the gray dotted line, ranged 
from 57.7 to 57.6 percent from 2014-15 to 2019-20. The salmon line displays the same information for 
students who were current English Learners. Current English learners enrolled in postsecondary institutions 
at substantially lower rates than never and former English learners. The postsecondary enrollment rates for 
current English learners annually increased from 47.9 percent in 2014-15 to 49.2 percent in 2015-16; 
however, they decreased in both 2016-17 and 2018-19 to levels similar to 2014-15. The black dashed line 
shows the postsecondary enrollment rates for former English learners. The postsecondary enrollment rates 
for former English learners increased from 58.4 percent in 2014-15 to 62.4 percent in 2015-16. Moreover, 
since 2015-16, former English learners had postsecondary enrollment rates that were reasonably comparable 
to never English learners. 

                                                                     
15 Post-secondary enrollment data for current, former, and never English learners who graduated from high school 
in 2019-20 were unavailable as of the publication of this report.  
16 For the purposes of reporting post-secondary enrollment data in this report, current English learners are 
multilingual students who received English language instruction, supports, and services in an ELD program at any 
time during high school. Note that current English learners included students who were eligible to receive English 
language instruction, supports, and services in an ELD program but did not participate because their parents or 
guardians waived services. Former English learners are multilingual students who attained English language 
proficiency and exited an ELD program prior to entering high school. Lastly, never English learners are monolingual 
English or multilingual students who were not eligible to receive English language instruction, supports, and 
services in an ELD program at any time in grades kindergarten through twelve.  



English Learners in Oregon 

33 
 

Figure 23. Percentage of current, former, and never English learners enrolling in postsecondary institutions 
within 16 months of high school graduation (2014-15 to 2019-2017) 

 

Section 5: State Revenues and Expenditures for Current English Learners 

Each year, Oregon’s State School Fund provides funding to districts through General Purpose Grants. The 
amount of the grant relies on a formula that considers the number of students in the district (known as 
average daily membership weighted or ADMw). On average, the per-pupil funding amount in 2021-22 was 
$9,167.18 In addition to this basic funding, districts receive additional state funds for each student enrolled in 
an ELD program. This amount is 0.5 × $9,167 or $4,584 per current English learner. Altogether, the state 
allocated $228,013,853 for these additional English learner funds in the 2021-22 school year.  

Figure 24 depicts the relationship between current English learner revenues the state allocated to districts via 
the State School Fund Formula and the total current English learner expenditures from the General Fund 
expressed as a ratio. Statewide, the ratio of expenditures to revenues in 2021-22 was 0.86, meaning that 
district expenditures on current English learners reflected 86 percent of the funds the state allocated to 
districts via the State School Fund Formula. Some districts spent more than this percentage (up to 644%), 
while others reported spending less (as little as 0%). The values on the extreme ends of the range, however, 
may reflect variations in the way that some districts report data. Some districts with few current English 
learners report revenue received from the state, but do not identify expenditures specific to current English 
learners, even though they may expend funds for English learner services. Other districts on the high end of 
the spending ratio may include expenses for dual-language programs that also educate former and never 
English learners, rather than calculating the percentage spent solely on current English learners.  

                                                                     
17 The year (e.g., 2019-20) represents the school year in which students graduated from high school.  
18 While $9,167 is the average amount, the grant amount can vary a bit for different districts because of the way 
the formula is set up.  

47.9 49.2 46.7
42.0

50.7
37.7

58.4
62.4 60.4 61.5 62.9

54.4

57.7
63.5 63.1 62.6 63.9 57.6

0.0
10.0
20.0
30.0
40.0
50.0
60.0
70.0

2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

Current English Learners Former English Learners Never English Learners



English Learners in Oregon 

34 
 

Figure 24. Ratio of current English learner expenditures to revenues across districts in 2021-22 

 

As figure 25 illustrates, the statewide ratio increased steadily from 2015-16 to 2018-19; however, in 2019-20 
through 2021-22, the ratio decreased below 1.0.  

Figure 25. Ratio of statewide expenditures on current English learners to revenues (2015-16 to 2021-22) 

 

Expenditures from the General Fund on current English learners either belong to Function 1291 (covering 
expenditures for instruction and interventions to help current English learners learn English) or Area of 
Responsibility 280 (other supports for current English learners, such as interpretation services or 
transportation). 19  

Current English learner expenditures for 2021-22 totaled $196,738,499. Districts accounted for 
approximately 83.3 percent of the expenditures ($163,859,331) using Function 1291 and 16.7 percent of the 
expenditures ($32,879,169) using Area of Responsibility 280. 

In addition to this state funding, districts with at least 69 current English learners may access federal Title III 
grants, which in 2021-22 provided an additional $137.29 per student for supplemental current English learner 
services20. Additional information on the grant amounts is available on the ODE website under Title III 
Allocations.  

                                                                     
19 For a more detailed description of the accounting system categories, see Oregon’s Program Budgeting and 
Accounting Manual. 
20 Districts with fewer than 69 students can join other districts in a consortium to access these grants.  

0.86

0.00

1.00

2.00

3.00

4.00

5.00

6.00

7.00

0.89

0.92

1.00

1.04

0.98

0.95

0.86

0.00

0.20

0.40

0.60

0.80

1.00

1.20

2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22

https://www.oregon.gov/ode/schools-and-districts/grants/ESEA/EL/Pages/Funding-Grant-Information.aspx
https://www.oregon.gov/ode/schools-and-districts/grants/ESEA/EL/Pages/Funding-Grant-Information.aspx
http://www.oregon.gov/ode/schools-and-districts/grants/Pages/Financial-Budgeting-and-Accounting.aspx
http://www.oregon.gov/ode/schools-and-districts/grants/Pages/Financial-Budgeting-and-Accounting.aspx


English Learners in Oregon 

35 
 

References 

Allen, A. (2016). Examining best practices in gifted education to identify and serve culturally and linguistically 
diverse students. Presentation at the Oregon Association of Bilingual Educators, Happy Valley, Oregon, June 
24, 2016. 

Allensworth, E., & Evans, S. (2016). Tackling absenteeism in Chicago. Phi Delta Kappan, 98(2), 16-21. 
https://doi.org/10.1177/0031721716671900  

Artiles, A., & Ortiz. A. (Eds.). (2002). English language Learners with special education needs: Assessment, 
identification, and instruction. Washington, DC: Center for Applied Linguistics. 

Browder, C. T. (2014). English Learners with limited or interrupted formal education: Risk and resilience in 
educational outcomes. University of Maryland: dissertation. 

De Jong, E.J. (2004). After exit: Academic achievement patterns of former English language Learners. 
Education Policy Analysis Archives, 12 (50). Downloaded from https://epaa.asu.edu/ojs/article/view/205/331 

Ebert, K. D., & Reilly, M. (2022). Predictors of language proficiency in school-age Spanish–English 
bilingual children with and without developmental language disorder. Bilingualism: Language and 
Cognition, 25(2), 296-306. 

Flores, S. M., Batalova, J., & Fix, M. (2012). The Educational trajectories of English language learners in Texas. 
Washington DC: Migration Policy Institute.  

García, O. (2009). Emergent bilinguals and TESOL: What's in a name? TESOL Quarterly, 43(2), 322-326. 
https://doi.org/10.1002/j.1545-7249.2009.tb00172.x  

Ginsburg, A., Jordan, P., & Chang, H. (2014). Absences add up: How school attendance affects student success. 
Attendance Works. Downloaded from https://www.attendanceworks.org/wp-
content/uploads/2017/05/Absenses-Add-Up_September-3rd-2014.pdf 

Hamayan, E., Marler, B., Sanchez Lopez, C., & Damico, J. (2007). Special education considerations for English 
language Learners: Delivering a continuum of services. Philadelphia: Caslon.  

Hopkins, M., Thompson, K. D., Linquanti, R., Hakuta, K., & August, D. (2013). Fully accounting for English 
learner performance: A key issue in ESEA reauthorization. Educational Researcher, 42(2), 101–108. 
https://doi.org/10.3102/0013189X12471426  

Menken, K., & Kleyn, T. (2009). The difficult road for long-term English Learners. Educational Leadership, 
66(7), 26-29. 

ODE ESSA Plan (2017). Oregon’s Consolidated State Plan Under the Every Student Succeeds Act. Available at: 
https://www.oregon.gov/ode/rules-and-
policies/ESSA/Documents/APPROVED%20OR_ConsolidatedStateplan8-30-17.pdf 

https://doi.org/10.1177/0031721716671900
https://epaa.asu.edu/ojs/article/view/205/331
https://doi.org/10.1002/j.1545-7249.2009.tb00172.x
https://www.attendanceworks.org/wp-content/uploads/2017/05/Absenses-Add-Up_September-3rd-2014.pdf
https://www.attendanceworks.org/wp-content/uploads/2017/05/Absenses-Add-Up_September-3rd-2014.pdf
https://doi.org/10.3102/0013189X12471426


English Learners in Oregon 

36 
 

Short, D. J., & Fitzsimmons, S. (2007). Double the work: Challenges and solutions to acquiring language and 
academic literacy for adolescent English language learners: A report to Carnegie Corporation of New York. 
Alliance for Excellent Education. 

Thompson, K. D., Umansky, I. M., & Rew, W. J. (2022). Improving understanding of English learner education 
through an expanded analytic framework. Educational Policy. https://doi.org/10.1177/08959048221087214  

https://doi.org/10.1177/08959048221087214


DATE: August 30, 2023

TO: Board of Directors

FR: Bill Newton, Superintendent

RE: Consolidated Action

EXPLANATION: All items listed below are matters considered by the Board of Directors to
be routine and will be enacted by one motion. There will be no separate
discussion of these items unless a member of the board requests a specific
item to be removed from the consolidated action and placed on the regular
agenda. Any item of the consolidated action may be pulled by any board
member for a full discussion and associated vote. The request to move an
item from the consolidated action to an individual action item should occur
during the “Review/Revision of Agenda'' section of the board meeting.
Otherwise, a motion to approve all items contained in the consolidated
action will be requested by the adminstration.

PRESENTER: Bill Newton, Superintendent

SUPPLEMENTARY
MATERIALS:

A. Regular Business Meeting Minutes - August 15, 2023
B. Regular Business Meeting Minutes - August 23, 2023
C. Human Resources Report/Personnel Action
D. Superintendent’s Goals

RECOMMENDATION: The administration recommends the Board approve the consolidated action
as presented

PROPOSED MOTION: I move to approve the consolidated action as presented.



MINUTES OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING

August 15, 2023
The School Board minutes are not official, as they have not been approved by the Hood River County School District Board of Directors. These
minutes are for review and are subject to change and/or approval. Once approved, signed, and dated, they become official.

I. WORK SESSIONWELCOME AND CALL TO ORDER – 5:00 P.M.
The Hood River County School District (HRCSD) regular board meeting was called to order at 5:00 p.m.
by the board chair, Chrissy Reitz, in the Nathaniel Coe Administrative Center, 1011 Eugene St, Hood
River OR 97031

The following board members were present:
Julia Garcia-Ramirez
Corinda Hankins-Elliott (joined at 5:28 virtually)
Chrissy Reitz, Chair
Brandi Sheppard, Vice-Chair
Barb Hosford
Jen Kelly
David Stuben

The following board members were absent:

The following members of the superintendent’s cabinet were present:
Bill Newton, Superintendent
Gus Hedberg, Executive Director of Human Resources
Amy McConnell, Executive Director of Curriculum and Instruction
Patricia Cooper, Executive Director of Equity & Family Partnerships

The following HRCSD staff/community members were present:
Tod Hilstad, Meghan West, Trish Walker,

II. REVIEW/REVISION OF AGENDA - 5:01 P.M.
Superintendent Newton shared a revised personnel report had been added to the board packet.

III. WORK SESSION - 5:01 P.M.
Board Chair Chrissy Reitz opened the work session to discuss the following topics:

A. School Board - Superintendent Roles and Responsibilities
Board Chair Reitz went over the Superintendent Roles & Responsibilities document provided in the
packet. The board discussed the use of email and not using the reply all function. The board clarified that
board members can reply to emails. Reitz wanted to highlight the importance of representing the entire
district, not just the area that board members were elected to. Kelly suggested that the board do a
qualitative evaluation of the district results. Kelly requested that the language change to adopting a
balanced budget and taking a look at the next year’s budget.

Hood River County School District Board of Directors Meeting Minutes, August 15, 2023 Page 1 of 4



B. School Board - Superintendent Operating Agreements
Board Chair Reitz shared with the Board the School Board - Superintendent Operating Agreements and
highlighted how they work together as a team. She reviewed that all requests for information need to go
through the superintendent. Reitz reminded the board that speaking with one voice after the vote or
decision has been made.

C. Review and Propose Board Goals
Board Chair Reitz shared that Superintendent Newton edited last year’s goals. Kelly requested adding
program evaluation. The board spoke about the proficiency of the stakeholder surveys. The board spoke
about the changes to goals such as aligning the ending fund balance to match board policy at 5%. The
board spoke about attending the OSBA conference.

D. Agreements for Board Meetings, Work Sessions and Executive Session
Superintendent Bill Newton shared the document 2023-24 Agreements for Board Meetings, Work
Sessions and Executive Sessions. Reitz shared asking questions prior to the meeting gives the
administration team time to prepare and bring answers to the board meetings.

E. 2023-24 Board Committee Assignments
Superintendent Newton shared the document 2023-24 Board Committee Assignments. Board members
discussed their desire to participate on a number of workgroups/committees during the 2023-24 school
year.

F. Superintendent Goals
Superintendent Bill Newton shared the goals for the superintendent. He shared he used Polkinghorn’s
goals from last year as a guide. Newton walked the board through his draft of goals.

IV. REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING - 6:16 P.M.

V. PUBLIC COMMENT/HEARING OF DELEGATIONS OR VISITORS - 6:16 P.M.
There was no one signed up for public comment.

X. CONSOLIDATED REPORTS
There were no consolidated reports presented.

XI. CONSOLIDATED ACTION - 6:16 P.M.
All items listed below were matters considered by the Board of Directors to be routine and were enacted
by one motion. There was no separate discussion of these items. The Consolidated Action consisted of the
following items:

a. Regular Business Meeting Minutes - July 11, 2023
b. Work Session Meeting Minutes - July 24, 2023
c. Human Resources Report/Personnel Action
d. Final Reading of Board Policy
e. Annual Appointments Update

The board had a discussion about the final reading of board policy.

A motion was made by Julia Garcia Ramirez to approve the Consolidated Action as presented. It was
seconded by Brandi Sheppard and approved 6-1.

Hood River County School District Board of Directors Meeting Minutes, August 15, 2023 Page 2 of 4



XII. REPORTS & DISCUSSIONS – 6:29 P.M.

A. Announce Budget Committee Vacancies
Superintendent Bill Newton presented the Budget Committee vacancies for the 2024-25 budget year.

XIII. ACTION ITEMS – 6:33 P.M.

A. Approve Budget Calendar
Superintendent Bill Newton presented the budget calendar for 2024-25. The proposed Budget Calendar
for 2024-25 outlines the desired steps for engaging our diverse community in annual budget decisions.
The proposed budget calendar includes dates for each action required to adopt a budget in compliance
with Oregon’s Local Budget Law (ORS 294.305 to 294.565). The board discussed adding an education
meeting led by the CFO before the budget is presented.

A motion was made by Corinda Hankins Elliott to approve the proposed budget calendar for 2024-25. It
was seconded by Julia Garcia Ramirez and passed 7-0.

IVX. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS – 6:42 P.M.

Director Brandi Sheppard
Director Sheppard is looking forward to the next school year and school site visits. She is excited to
attend the district inservice on August 24th and hopes all the board members can make it.

Director Corinda Hankins Elliott
Director Hankins Elliott thanked the board for letting her attend online as she is in the midst of taking her
son to college.

Director Barb Hosford
Director Hosford is excited to welcome the new school year. She reminded everyone to take it one day at
a time. She hopes that K-12 students kick off a successful year of learning and growth. She gave a shout
out to those already back at work making the district great.

Director Jen Kelly
Director Kelly is looking forward to the next school year.

Director Julia Garcia-Ramirez
Director Garcia-Ramirez shared she is super excited about this new school year and having Bill Newton
as superintendent. Garcia-Ramirez shared she wanted teachers to focus on students while the board and
admin take the focus of the data.

Director David Stuben
Director Stuben shared he is excited about the new school year. He has enjoyed seeing all the fall sports
get started again. He felt very humbled at this work session with all the information he learned. He
appreciates being able to be a part of the board.

Director Chrissy Reitz
Director Reitz shared she is excited to see students back on campus and for the year to come. She shared
it was great to be back and is excited to serve the students. She hopes all board members are able to attend
the district inservice on August 24th.

Hood River County School District Board of Directors Meeting Minutes, August 15, 2023 Page 3 of 4



ADJOURNMENT – 6:48 P.M.
Chair Reitz adjourned the meeting at 6:48 P.M.

Board Meeting Voting
Chart

Date: Aug 15, 2023
Time:
6:00pm

MOTION
NUMBER

1. Consolidated Action 2. Approve Budget Calendar

Position Name ATTENDANCE Aye No Abstain Aye No Abstain

Position 1 Chrissy Reitz

Position 2 Barb Hosford

Position 3
Corinda
Hankins Elliott

Position 4
Julia
Garcia-Ramire
z

Position 5 David Stuben

Position 6
Brandi
Sheppard

Position 7
Member at Large

Jen Kelly

Motion made by: Julia Garcia Ramirez Corinda Hankins Elliott

Seconded by: Brandi Sheppard Julia Garcia Ramirez

SIGNATURES

_________________________________ ______________________________________
Chrissy Reitz, Board Chair Date Bill Newton, Superintendent Date
Board:mw

Hood River County School District Board of Directors Meeting Minutes, August 15, 2023 Page 4 of 4



MINUTES OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING

August 23, 2023
The School Board minutes are not official, as they have not been approved by the Hood River County School District Board of Directors. These
minutes are for review and are subject to change and/or approval. Once approved, signed, and dated, they become official.

I. REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING AND CALL TO ORDER – 6:30 P.M.
The Hood River County School District (HRCSD) regular board meeting was called to order at 6:30 p.m.
by the Board Chair, Chrissy Reitz, in a virtual google meets meeting. It was available as a livestream.

The following board members were present:
Chrissy Reitz, Chair
Brandi Sheppard, Vice-Chair
Jen Kelly
Barb Hosford
David Stuben
Corinda Hankins Elliott

The following board members were absent:
Julia Garcia-Ramirez

The following members of the superintendent’s cabinet were present:
Bill Newton, Superintendent
Gus Hedberg, Executive Director of Human Resources
Patricia Cooper, Executive Director of Equity & Family Partnerships
Doug Holmes, Chief Financial Officer
Amy McConnell, Executive Director of Curriculum and Instruction

The following HRCSD staff/community members were present:
Tod Hilstad, Meghan West

II. REVIEW/REVISION OF AGENDA - 6:30 P.M.
Superintendent Newton shared a revised personnel report had been added to the board packet.

III. CONSOLIDATED ACTION - 6:33 P.M.
All items listed below are matters considered by the Board of Directors to be routine and were enacted by
one motion. There was no separate discussion of these items. The Consolidated Agenda consisted of the
following items:

a. Human Resources Report/Personnel Action

A motion was made by Barb Hosford to approve the Consolidated Action as presented. It was seconded
by Brandi Sheppard and unanimously approved 6-0.

Hood River County School District Board of Directors Meeting Minutes, Aug 23, 2023 Page 1 of 2



IV.. ADJOURNMENT – 6:32 P.M.

Chair Chrissy Reitz adjourned the meeting at 6:32 P.M.

Board Meeting Voting
Chart

Date: Aug 23,
2023

Time:
6:30pm

MOTION
NUMBER

1. Approve
Consolidated Action

Position Name ATTENDANCE Aye No Abstain

Position 1 Chrissy Reitz

Position 2 Barb Hosford

Position 3
Corinda Hankins
Elliott

Position 4
Julia
Garcia-Ramirez

Position 5 David Stuben

Position 6 Brandi Sheppard

Position 7
Member
at Large

Jen Kelly

Motion made by: Barb Hosford

Seconded by: Brandi Sheppard

SIGNATURES

_______________________________________ ______________________________________
Chrissy Reitz, Board Chair Date Bill Newton, Superintendent Date
Board:mw

Hood River County School District Board of Directors Meeting Minutes, Aug 23, 2023 Page 2 of 2



August 30, 2023

To: Board of Directors

From: Gus Hedberg – Human Resources Director

Re: Personnel Report - REVISED

EXPLANATION:

Attached is the Personnel Report - REVISED - of personnel actions for the August 30, 2023 board meeting.

Presenter: Gus Hedberg – Human Resources Director

Supplementary
Materials: Personnel Report - REVISED

Recommendation: Request board approval of the attached Personnel Report - REVISED

ProposedMotion: I move to approve the Personnel Report - REVISED - as presented on August 30, 2023



Hood River County School District
Human Resources Office

1011 Eugene Street ● Hood River, Oregon 97031 ● (541) 387-5012 ● (541) 387-5099

**REVISED** August 30, 2023 **REVISED**
NEW HIRES (Approval Needed) - NUEVAS CONTRATACIONES (Se Necesita Aprobación)

NAME POSITION BUILDING COMMENTS

Cecilia Gonzalez Instructional Assistant May Street Elementary School Filling vacancy

Paige Lindley Instructional Assistant Westside Elementary School Filling vacancy

Gloria Lachino-Valente Kitchen Helper Hood River Valley High School Filling vacancy

Abigail Medina Instructional Assistant May Street Elementary School Filling vacancy

Sarah Rice Temporary School Counselor
(1.0 FTE)

Hood River Valley High School Temp for 2023/24; covering leaves

Ann McDonald Temporary AVID Electives
Teacher (.50 FTE)

Hood River Valley High School Temp for 2023/24; replacing Beardsley

Frank Mendoza Temporary Instructional Assistant May Street Elementary School Increased need

Carol Stockwell Instructional Assistant Mid Valley Elementary School Filling reconfigured position

Yasmin Toche-Lica Temporary Instructional Assistant May Street Elementary School Increased need

RESIGNATION/RETIREMENT/TERMINATION - RENUNCIAS/RETIROS/DESPIDOS
NAME POSITION BUILDING COMMENTS

Michael Freysinger Teacher Hood River Valley High School Resignation effective August 23, 203

Jaime Campos III Head Custodian May Street Elementary School Resignation effective August 30, 2023

Mary Schultz Instructional Assistant Parkdale Elementary School Resignation effective September 8, 2023

REQUESTS FOR LEAVES OF ABSENCE - SOLICITUDES DE AUSENTISMO
NAME POSITION BUILDING COMMENTS

Sarah Rice Study Hall Paraprofessional Hood River Valley High School
Requesting a leave of absence for 23/24 to
take a temporary Counseling position.

EMPLOYEE TRANSFERS - TRASLADOS DE EMPLEADOS
NAME FROM: POSITION/BUILDING TO: POSITION/BUILDING COMMENTS

ADVERTISED VACANCIES (Information Only) - POSICIONES VACANTES (Solo Información)
OPEN POSITION BUILDING STATUS COMMENTS

Speech Language Pathologist Pool District-wide services Open until filled Replacing Stanton transfer to EI/ECSE

Instructional Assistants - multiple
vacancies Hood River Valley High School Offers pending Filling multiple vacancies at Hood River

Valley High School

Elementary Secretary/Bookkeeper
(8 hours/day) Mid Valley Elementary School Interviews scheduled Replacing Marquez’s transfer to HRVHS

Instructional Assistant Pool May Street Elementary School Offers pending Replacing multiple vacancies



Family Engagement Paraprofessional
(8 hours/day) Westside Elementary School Open until filled Replacing Benavides transfer to May

Street Elementary

Kitchen Helper Pool (4.5 hours/day) Various schools Offer pending Replacing Ballard resignation; Avila
transfer to Mid Valley

3rd Grade Teacher (.50 FTE) Cascade Locks Elementary Offer pending New position due to enrollment

Instructional Assistant (6.5 hours/day) Cascade Locks Elementary
School

Open until filled Replacing vacancy

Secondary (6th-12th Grade) Behavior
Paraprofessional District-wide programs Open until filled New position

Custodian I (8 hours/day) Hood River Valley High School Open until filled Replacing Shertzer resignation

Behavior Support Paraprofessional
(8 hour/day) Student Services Open until filled Replacing Herman transfer to Parkdale

Updated: Temporary Science Teacher
(two .50 FTE or 1.0 FTE) Hood River Valley High School Open until filled Replacing Kelly transfer to HROA

8/30/23







Superintendent Goals 2023-2024

HRCSD Core Value: Student Learning and Growth: The superintendent will,
● support high school success programs so that the:

○ ninth grade on-track rate increases from 87% to 93.0%, with a long term goal of 95% by 2026.
○ four-year cohort graduation rate increases from 90.6% to exceed 92.0%, with a long term goal of 95% by 2026.
○ percent of graduating seniors have taken three or more college eligible courses will increase from 61% to exceed 64%

● ensure rigorous academic programs are implemented with training and support so that the percentage of students meeting or exceeding Oregon Statewide Assessment in:
○ English Language Arts increases from 45.3% to exceed 49.0%, with a long term goal of 60% meeting or exceeding by 2026.
○ Mathematics increases from 35.4% to exceed 39.0%, with a long term goal of 52% meeting or exceeding by 2026.

HRCSD Core Value: Equity and Cultural Responsiveness: The superintendent will,
● ensure each student in HRCSD has access to a reliable internet source, understands and knows how to use their technology tools, and has access to rigorous curriculum;
● ensure each school’s continuous improvement plan is setting rigorous goals and taking equity-centered action steps to improve learning outcomes for all students;
● ensure each students’ unique learning needs are met by providing all sta� access to on-going professional development and support;
● ensure multi-tiered systems of support are e�ectively identifying and intervening with students in need of academic, attendance and social-emotional interventions;
● ensure the District continues to recruit and hire a diverse workforce.

HRCSD Core Value: Community and Family Partnerships: The superintendent will,
● implement a twice-annual stakeholder survey to monitor our progress toward improving and maintaining public trust.
● continue to seek new partnerships with local agencies to foster the conditions for positive, safe and inclusive learning environments in our schools.
● ensure each school and our district are focused on improving opportunities for families to engage in school activities.

HRCSD Core Value: Wellness and Health: The superintendent will,
● ensure all schools e�ectively implement school-wide PBIS by achieving at least 70% on the Tiered Fidelity Inventory (TFI).
● support a District-wide e�ort to improve the regular attendance rate from 65.0% to exceed 75.0%

HRCSD Core Value: Safety and Operations: The superintendent will,
● ensure that each school has implemented the Standard Response Protocols and regularly and consistently practices and prepares for emergencies.
● develop a budget that supports the priorities and goals of the Strategic Plan 2026, has a minimum 5% general fund in reserves, and actual expenditures come within 4% of planned

expenditures in the adopted budget
● ensure the district earns its tenth consecutive “unmodi�ed opinion” from external auditors.



DATE: August 30, 2023
TO: Hood River County School Board of Directors
FR: Bill Newton, Superintendent
RE: Strategic Plan Update

EXPLANATION: Bill Newton will provide an update on the strategic planning.

PRESENTERS: Bill Newton, Superintendent

SUPPLEMENTARY Google Slide Presentation
MATERIALS:

RECOMMENDATION: No recommendation

PROPOSEDMOTION: No action needed



Strategic Plan Update
August 2023



Agenda

● Review strategic plan development
● Describe regular review process
● Share this year’s annual review
● Explain relationship between strategic goals and core values



Strategic plan development
● Formed strategic plan development task force in fall 2020
● Gathered stakeholder input in 2020-21
● Created strategic plan and asked for board approval in July 2021



Regular review process
● Regularly review and integrate strategic planning efforts
● Conduct stakeholder survey twice each year and analyze results
● Perform annual spring review of complete plan



2022-23 strategic plan review
● Reviewed complete plan, including goals, objectives, and action 

items (Cabinet with Noonan)
● Considered any necessary changes to the plan and processes 

surrounding the plan
● Key takeaways: Prioritize tracking accomplishments and develop 

timeline and process for including staff in annual review



2022-23 celebrations



Identify, target, and close opportunity and access gaps

One positive key accomplishment of this year: 

● Administered the Intercultural Development Inventory with 
administrators and equity learning team members and they 
developed a personal plan for growth

One area to prioritize for next year: 

● Create a rubric to coach and assess culturally responsive 
instruction used during classroom observations as well as develop 
a professional development calendar for teachers to deepen their 
understanding of Culturally Responsive Instruction



Graduate high school ready for college, career, and community success

One positive key accomplishment of this year: 

● Continue to strengthen MTSS efforts

One area to prioritize for next year: 

● Continue to refine Tier 1 instruction in all content areas while 
continuing to support all schools with the implementation of 
AVID strategies school wide



Implement relevant, rigorous, and engaging learning opportunities

One positive key accomplishment of this year: 

● Developed an instructional coaching model that supports 
individual teacher growth while providing professional 
development in all of our schools

One area to prioritize for next year: 

● Provide ongoing training for K-12 teachers and administrators 
on best practices for PLCs while also supporting their ability to 
monitor student growth at the classroom level in order to 
respond in a timely manner



Establish high expectations for academic and personal growth

One positive key accomplishment of this year: 

● Aligned School Continuous Improvement Plans with our school 
district’s strategic Plan and our core Values

One area to prioritize for next year: 

● Identify AVID tools that can be used in all schools to support 
student self-reflection, growth, and self-efficacy



Strengthen family and community partnerships

One positive key accomplishment of this year:

● Organized regular community listening sessions to gather input 
and ideas to improve our practices. These sessions will be 
ongoing throughout next school year.

One area to prioritize for next year:

● Organize two school family partnership, linked-to-learning 
activities per year to engage families, including at least one 
literacy activity



Prioritize health and safety as a critical component of school success

One positive key accomplishment of this year:

● Used monthly meetings for the District Safety team to identify and 
prioritize and address for safety concerns at each buildings

One area to prioritize for next year:

● Develop a deferred maintenance plan for all HRCSD buildings
● Practice a reunification and/or emergency drill
● Explore Restorative Practices



Develop qualified, diverse, culturally proficient workforce

One positive key accomplishment of this year:

● Organized monthly staff orientation and individual meetings 
with the HR Director and new hires after one month on the job 
to help staff get a positive start and feel included

One area to prioritize for next year:

● Host an ongoing benefits education program in buildings for 
staff to understand their benefits and get questions answered



HRCSD core values

● Strategic plan includes seven goals that each have a 
set of objectives and action items

● Selected five core values that embody the work these 
goals embody

● Identified Cabinet partners to lead the efforts 
surrounding each core value

● Throughout school year, core value leaders will report 
on core values



Strategic Plan Update
Au 2023



DATE: August 30, 2023
TO: Hood River County School Board of Directors
FR: Stephanie Hoppe, Director of Communications
RE: Spring Core Value Survey Results

EXPLANATION: Stephanie Hoppe will provide an update on the spring core value
survey results.

PRESENTERS: Stephanie Hoppe, Director of Communications

SUPPLEMENTARY Google Slide Presentation
MATERIALS:

RECOMMENDATION: No recommendation

PROPOSEDMOTION: No action needed



Core Values Survey Summary Data
Datos resumidos de la encuesta de valores fundamentales

August 2023
agosto de 2023



Agenda / Agenda

● Provide overview of spring 2023 survey
● Highlight significant findings (parents/guardians, staff, students)
● Share conclusions
● Outline next steps

● Proporcionar una descripción general de la encuesta de primavera de 2023
● Resalta los hallazgos significativos (padres/tutores, personal, estudiantes)
● Comparte conclusiones
● Esquema de los próximos pasos



Strategic goal: Strengthen family and community partnerships
Objective: Regularly gather and analyze feedback from stakeholders to continually improve 
our service to students and families

Meta estratégica: Fortalecer las alianzas familiares y comunitarias
Objetivo: recopilar y analizar regularmente los comentarios de las partes interesadas para 
mejorar continuamente nuestro servicio a los estudiantes y las familias



Overview of survey / Descripción general de la encuesta

● Bi-annual core values survey
○ Asks stakeholders to respond to three survey items per core value
○ Helps assess progress toward fulfilling five core values
○ Offers stakeholders opportunity to provide comments on each core value

● Encuesta semestral de valores fundamentales
○ Pide que la comunidad  responda a tres elementos de la encuesta por valor central
○ Ayuda a evaluar el progreso hacia el cumplimiento de cinco valores fundamentales
○ Ofrece a las partes interesadas la oportunidad de proporcionar comentarios sobre cada valor central



Overview of survey / Descripción general de la encuesta

● Stakeholders invited to participate in May 2023
○ 227 parents/guardians who responded
○ 138 staff who responded
○ 661 students who responded

● Actores invitados a participar en octubre de 2022
○ 227 padres/tutores quien respondió
○ 138 personal quien respondió
○ 661  estudiantes quien respondió



Parent/guardian survey / Encuesta para padres/tutores

● Slightly lower parent/guardian participation (227 in spring 2023/296 in fall 2022)
● Summary ratings for core values changed minimally from fall to spring

○ They rated performance between neutral and good on all values
○ Community and family partnerships and wellness rated highest 
○ Student learning and growth rated lowest

● Participación de padres/tutores ligeramente más alta (227 en la primavera de 2023/296 en el otoño de 2022)
● Las calificaciones resumidas de los valores fundamentales cambiaron mínimamente del otoño a la primavera

○ Calificaron el desempeño entre neutral y bueno en todos los valores
○ Las asociaciones comunitarias y familiares y el bienestar obtuvieron la calificación más alta



Parent/guardian survey / Encuesta para padres/tutores



Staff survey / Encuesta al personal

● Higher staff participation (138 in spring 2023 / 81 in fall 2022)
● Summary ratings for core values generally higher than parents/guardians

○ Staff rated operations and safety and wellness good
○ Staff rated most areas slightly lower in spring than fall

● Menor participación del personal (177 en la primavera de 2022 / 81 en el otoño de 2022)
● Calificaciones resumidas para valores fundamentales generalmente más altas que las de los padres/tutores



Staff survey / Encuesta al personal



Staff survey / Encuesta al personal



Student survey / Encuesta estudiantil

● Lower student participation (661 in spring 2023/1,174 in fall 2022)
● Summary ratings for core values changed minimally from fall to spring

○ They rated performance between neutral and good on all values
○ Safety and operations and wellness rated highest 
○ Overall, ratings were more favorable in fall than spring

● Mayor participación estudiantil (686 en la primavera de 2022/1174 en el otoño de 2022)
● Las calificaciones resumidas de los valores fundamentales cambiaron mínimamente del otoño a la 

primavera
○ Calificaron el desempeño entre neutral y bueno en todos los valores
○ La seguridad, las operaciones y el bienestar obtuvieron la calificación más alta



Student survey / Encuesta estudiantil



Conclusions / Conclusiones

● A few conclusions remain consistent over last few survey rounds
○ Families, staff, and students feel there are no poor areas, but there is room for 

improvement
○ Staff ratings higher than students’/families’ ratings
○ Wellness rated as highest among three respondent groups

● Specific areas for improvement
○ Facilitating honest conversations about race
○ Professional development to help staff improve classroom instruction and profession

● Area of growth from fall to spring to capitalize on was communication with families

● Spanish



Next steps / Próximos pasos

● Share school-specific data with school administrators
● Incorporate key findings into strategic plan objectives and action items
● Identify ways to increase participation 

○ Staff: Coordinate with human resources to combine UpBeat survey and core values survey 
○ Parent/guardian: Consider timing; Coordinate with school administrators to encourage 

participation at school level
○ Student: Consider timing; Coordinate with school administrators to allow time for survey 

completion
● Administer survey in spring to track and maintain relationships and compare results



Final reports for 2023 spring survey / 
Informes finales de la encuesta de primavera de 2023

● Item level outcomes (spring 2023)
● Demographics and performance (spring 2023)
● Executive summary (spring 2023)



Core Values Survey Summary Data
Datos resumidos de la encuesta de valores fundamentales

August 2023
agosto de 2023



DATE: August 30, 2023
TO: Hood River County School Board of Directors
FR: Kyle Rosselle, Director of School Safety and Security
RE: Transportation and Facilities Grant/MOVER Project

EXPLANATION: Kyle Rosselle and JosephWachunsas will present onMOVERGrant
Project and provide an overview of the objectives and scope of the
project.

PRESENTERS: Kyle Rosselle, Director of School Safety and Security
JosephWachunas, New Buildings.org

SUPPLEMENTARY Google Slide Presentation
MATERIALS: Report Names

RECOMMENDATION: The administration recommends the Board accept the MOVERGrant
and scope of the project.

PROPOSEDMOTION: I move to approve the MOVERGrant as proposed.



© New Buildings Institute 2019

Hood River County School District Board Meeting  – 8/30/23
MOVER Project

Photo: Lion Electric



© New Buildings Institute 2021

About New Buildings 
Institute (NBI)
• Mission: We push for better buildings that 

achieve zero energy, zero carbon, and 
beyond—through research, policy, 
guidance, and market transformation—to 
protect people and the planet.

• Vision: We envision a transformed built 
environment that is carbon-free, 
sustainable, and energy-efficient and 
supports thriving economies that benefit all 
people and the planet.



© New Buildings Institute 2019

Project partners + Roles
Organization Role Type of Partner
New Buildings Institute Project Manager

Lead Partners
Hood River County School District Microgrid + electric school buses

Columbia Willamette Clean Cities 
Coalition Training, EV charging 

PAE Engineers Microgrid Engineering

Forth EV charging coordinator

Technology Partners
Oregon Clean Power Coop Solar array installation

Bonneville Environmental Foundation In-kind technical assistance

Electric School Bus Newsletter Electric school bus coordinator

MCEDD Oregon resilience grant lead

Local PartnersHood River County Emergency response coordination

Hood River Energy Council Local knowledge transfer

Hood River Electric Coop Local utility, EV charging support
Utility Partners

Pacific Power Light duty EV + chargers



© New Buildings Institute 2019

Project Overview

•Department of Energy Funded
• $1,000,000 (+ equal cost share)
•October 2023 – October 2026
•One of the first ESB + microgrid 
pilots in the nation



© New Buildings Institute 2019

Why do 
MOVER?
• Help get Electric School 

Buses and Chargers for 
Hood River County 
School District

• Provide Resilience to 
Wy'East Middle School

• This project would be 
one of the first to 
demonstrate ESB use to 
provide power to 
buildings

• Electric school buses 
mean cleaner air 
especially for 
disadvantaged 
communities



© New Buildings Institute 2019

Project Technologies

• Electric school buses
• Electric vehicles
• EV chargers
• Solar Panels
•Microgrid
• Stationary battery 



© New Buildings Institute 2019

Project Challenges 

•Need matching Oregon 
resilience grant for equipment
• Good meeting with grant officers in 

July – Next round Q4 2023

•Bleeding edge technology – lots 
to learn!



MOVER PROJECT TIMELINE 

Pre-award –
• Grant negotiations
• Subcontracting

Year 1 - Design
• Microgrid Study 

and planning
• EV charger 

planning
• Solar Design
• Vehicle leasing 

and purchasing

Year 2 – Build
• Microgrid, solar, 

EVSE, stationary 
storage installation

• Begin vehicle 
operation

Year 3 – Operate + Study
• Operate microgrid, 

buses and vehicle
• Conduct case study on 

lessons learned

End of Project - Educate 
• Publish case study
• Educate community on 

results

1
May 19, 2023 2

Project Kickoff 
Oct 1, 2023

3
Oct 2024

4
October 2025

5
Project End 

October 1, 2026



DATE: August 30, 2023

TO: Board of Directors

FR: Chrissy Reitz, Board Chair

RE: Resolution #23-24/01 Hispanic Heritage Month

EXPLANATION: The resolution is recommending HRCSD proclaims September 15th -
October 15th as Hispanic Heritage Month and honors the rich diversity of
the Hispanic and Latino communities and celebrates the many ways they
contribute to Hood River County, the state of Oregon, and the United
States of America.

PRESENTER: Chrissy Reitz, Board Chair

SUPPLEMENTARY
MATERIALS:

Resolution #23-24/01- Hispanic Heritage Month

RECOMMENDATION: The administration recommends the Board approve the Resolution as
presented.

PROPOSED MOTION: I move to approve Resolution #23-24/01 - Hispanic Heritage Month as
presented.



HOOD RIVER COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT
RESOLUTION #23-24/01

National Hispanic Heritage Month

WHEREAS, each year, the United States observes National Hispanic Heritage Month by celebrating
the culture, heritage and countless contributions of those whose ancestors were indigenous to North
America as well as those who came from Central and South America, Mexico, the Caribbean, and
Spain; and

WHEREAS, National Hispanic Heritage Month began in 1968 as Hispanic Heritage Week under
President Johnson and was expanded by President Reagan in 1988 to cover a 30-day period starting on
September 15 and ending on October 15; and

WHEREAS, No matter the term one chooses to use, whether it be Hispanic, Latino/a, Latinx or
Chicano/a, we speak of people who are civil rights leaders and community organizers, politicians,
soldiers, educators, journalists, �rst responders, pioneers in art and science, healthcare professionals,
athletes, inventors, entertainers and so much more; and

WHEREAS, More than forty-three percent of enrolled students in the Hood River County School
District identify as Hispanic and/or Latino;

WHEREAS, Approximately twenty percent of our employees identify as Hispanic and/or Latino and
make great contributions to the accomplishment of HRCSD’s mission;

WHEREASHood River County School District supports providing opportunities for our Hispanic
and Latino students to partner and celebrate their cultures throughMEChA, the Movimiento
Estudiantil Chicano de Aztlán club, whose motto is “unity makes strength,” and other Latino/a/x
clubs and activities; and

WHEREASHood River County School District honors and preserves the linguistic and cultural
assets of students through dual language programs, and our Spanish for Spanish Speakers and



Advanced Placement Spanish courses which contribute to producing students who are prepared for
the Oregon Seal of Biliteracy. These programs also provide the same opportunities to non-Spanish
speaking students from diverse backgrounds, which contributes further to a positive, integrated
multicultural, multilingual school community; and

WHEREAS, Hispanic and Latino individuals continue their rich history of signi�cant and diverse
contributions to the cultural, educational, economic and political vitality of our community;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Hood River County School District hereby
proclaims September 15th – October 15th, 2023 as Hispanic Heritage Month and honors the rich
diversity of the Hispanic and Latino community and celebrate the many ways they contribute to Hood
River County, the state of Oregon and the United States of America.

ADOPTED this 30th day of August, 2023.

___________________________________________ ___________________________________________
Bill Newton,Superintendent Chrissy Reitz,Chair of the Board

Motion made by: _______________________ Seconded by: ___________________________

Passed/Failed: _________________________ Dated: ___________________________________



DATE: August 30, 2023

TO: Board of Directors

FR: Bill Newton, Superintendent

RE: Donations

EXPLANATION: Generous donations have been received by the schools in our district. Board
approval is needed to accept said donations.

PRESENTER: Chrissy Reitz, Board Chair

SUPPLEMENTARY
MATERIALS:

Please see the list of donations below:

- Kelly and Dave Dittmar donated supplies valued at $3,212.06 to Parkdale
Elementary School.

RECOMMENDATION: It is the recommendation of the HRCSD Administration to accept the generous
donations as presented.

PROPOSED MOTION: I move to accept the generous donations as presented.



August 18, 2023

Kelly and Dave Dittmar
1603 N PROCTOR STREET, TACOMA, WA 98406

Dear Kelly and Dave Dittmar:

Parkdale Elementary School and the Hood River County School District wish to thank you for your
donation of $3,212.06 in the form of student school supplies. This donation includes all the supplies
needed to get our students going at the start of the school year. We acknowledge that you did not receive
any goods or services for this donation. Your generous contribution is exceptional and highly appreciated!

Your donation to the Parkdale classrooms and students will be accepted at an upcoming Hood River
County School Board meeting.

Hood River County School District is a political subdivision of the State of Oregon as described in section
170(c)(1) of the Internal Revenue Code. Donations to Hood River County School District are tax
deductible for federal and state income tax purposes within the limits specified in the Internal Revenue
Code and state law. Our Taxpayer ID number is 93-6000502.

Thank you again.

Sincerely,

Nate Parson
Principal
Parkdale Elementary School

cc: Hood River County School District Board of Directors

Excellence. Every student. Every day.

Nate Parson | Principal | Parkdale Elementary School
PO Box 69 • Mt. Hood-Parkdale
Oregon 97041 • 541.352.6255
www.hoodriver.k12.or.us


